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Chairman’s Statement
FRHLEE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to present the annual report of the
Group for the year ended 31 March 2008.

The year under review saw challenges as well as opportunities that drove
the Group to implement various strategies to maintain its leading position
in the textile industry, as well as pave the way for the development of its
future business growth. Even in the face of challenging market conditions,
the Group managed to uphold its competitive edge and firmly sustained the
Group as the leading manufacturer of customized knitted fabrics in the textile
industry.

Financial Highlights

The financial year under review was a very challenging year for the Group.
Uncertain economic environment brought by the subprime crisis led to
volatility in purchase order flow from customers. The surging crude oil and
commodity prices also raised the costs of yarns, fuel, dyestuff and other raw
materials. Together with rising overheads in China and the appreciation of the
Renminbi, all these contributed to a tough and volatile operating environment
during the reporting financial year. Nevertheless, the Group managed to
maintain its core competencies and sustained a stable revenue growth.

During the reporting period, the Group’s sales volume increased by about
1% to reach 155 million pounds. Revenue reached HK$4,280.6 million, up
by 1.8%. Due to the increase in overheads and raw materials costs during
the year, there was a drop in the Group’s gross profit margin from 21.9%
to 16.3%. Profit attributable to shareholders amounted to HK$392.1 million,
while earnings per share was HK$0.28.

The Board has proposed a final dividend of HK 7.5 cents per share. Together
with the interim dividend of HK 6.5 cents per share, the total dividend for the
2008 Financial Year will be HK 14 cents per share.

Business Review

The 2008 Financial Year was a consolidating year in the textile industry,
but the Group continued to leverage on our core competencies to maintain
a solid business operation. During the year, we invested considerably in
upgrading equipment as well as improving our facilities in Panyu, Guangdong
to enhance manufacturing processes. In our production plant in Sri Lanka,
expansion plan to double production capacity has been fully completed and
production volume will be increased progressively in the coming financial
year. During the reporting year, we continued to maintain close collaborations
with apparel brand owners.

Besides maintaining close relationships with our existing customers, the
Group has also been exploring opportunities to diversify geographically,
particularly into China’s domestic market, during the reporting period. We
see the PRC market with huge potential and the Group shall continue to
deploy more resources into this new business arm. During the year, the
Group expanded its China domestic sales team to further penetrate into this
enormous market.

During the reporting period, both the automotive fabric manufacturing joint
venture, SPM Automotive Textile Co., Ltd., and the joint venture Fillattice-
Pacific Ltd. were making good progress and sales began to take off. We
believe these new business arms will contribute to our profitability.

4 Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2008
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Chairman’s Statement
FREEEE

Prospects

Looking forward, although the uncertain economic climate in the US will still
impact the operating environment of the fabric manufacturing industry that
will result in a wave of industry consolidation, we are confident to maintain
the Group’s competitiveness by exercising stringent cost-control strategies
and pursuing market diversification. The huge potential of the PRC market
will fuel our future business growth and create solid and consistent returns to
our shareholders. We shall continue to leverage on our established clientele
and our unique positioning with value-added products and services, to further
expand into the PRC market and capture the enormous opportunities brought
by the strong domestic market growth and increased international demand
for garments manufactured in China.

In addition to our continuous effort to strengthen and consolidate our leading
position in manufacturing complex, value-added fabrics, we shall also
continue to further explore other markets, including the non-apparel products,
to further broaden our customer base. We will also dedicate our research
and development efforts on new types of valued-added fabrics to enhance
our profitability in the long run. At the same time, we will explore potential
strategic partnerships that will create added value and synergistic benefits to
our existing business.

In order to maintain our competitiveness in the industry, we will continue to
expand our production capacity in accordance with the market demand and
upgrade our equipment and technology on an on-going basis. We shall also
continue to exercise stringent costs control to maintain the Group’s operation
efficiency.

With our unique positioning with value-added products and services, strong
manufacturing capabilities in complex fabrics and solid financial position,
we are confident that the Group possesses the competitive attributes and
qualities to further consolidate our market leadership position and take us into
the next level.

Appreciation

Finally, | would like to express my sincere appreciation to all shareholders for
their support, and thank my fellow Board members and the management
for their hard work and dedication, and our customers for their continuous
support.

On behalf of the Board
Wan Wai Loi
CHAIRMAN

Hong Kong, 11 July 2008

R

RERR - BEXBEEREZ TRABAMARE
REETEMHRER 7 KERE - W EI#T
XBARY AMBRMANDETREL  AIEAE
Ho B RE PR AR B K Ko BT 2 TTAE TS A AR
SEzBFEN - FETMSEZEBEENSHEDEE
ARZEBEE  URARRTRBEFEZD
HeAEESUBEREARBE ERESNE
AREEMERGZBENGEM  E—TBER
EBERRTS - MEFERTIZRDER R
BN BISUEREF R AL 2 EAMKES

BriFEEm R RBEARER EEEMIRED
K8 2 BEIAIIN - AR E T EE — 2
BEMTE  BREIFREER  WE—FREE
FER - ZE RN EHBIIRET AR
FRERNEEN - AR AEEBRRERRR
BEBAEEERG ARG 2 BERBBHAE
e -

RRBEBEXAZETN  KERBEEZRT
SR FIEBRERLIFERIAKE 22 MM
KFE - RENEERMBITERMBRANZGIEE - #
RANERE 2 EBEK -

ERRMELEEER RBHOBE TS -
£ B AR B K A B ) ARG OB TS IAOR
SPFEY - ROREAEEABERIEITRE
B Ak — SR EETHEE L B R
EEBER -

6|

B AAELBSSUBRRSH - TAES
PRELEEBFHI(EEE  BEEFHESXR
BUABDHE -

EEER®
TE
FEKE

&% 2008F7 A11H

BAGBIERAERD 5
2008F F 3R]



Management Discussion and Analysis

BB RED AN

Business Review

Overview

The 2008 Financial Year was a challenging year for the Group and the
industry. The surging overheads costs in China, the increasing costs of raw
materials and the impact from the subprime crisis in the U.S. were challenges
to the Group’s business. However, in spite of the challenging operating
environment, the Group sustained growth in both sales revenue and volume
during the year under review.

The Group achieved revenue of HK$4,280.6 million for the year under review,
representing an increase of 1.8% as compared to last financial year.

With the rising crude oil and commodity prices that had led to an increase in
the costs of yarns, fuel, dyestuff and other raw materials, gross profit for the
year and profit attributable to equity holders declined to HK$696.9 million
and HK$392.1 million respectively. During the year, gross profit margin
and net profit margin were 16.3% (2007: 21.9%) and 9.2% (2007: 13.2%)
respectively. The management of the Group will strive to mitigate the impact as
far as possible through improving operational efficiency, upgrading production
facilities and raising selling prices.

The Group’s other revenue was HK$57.8 million (2007: HK$52.4 million) for
2008 Financial Year, representing an increase of 10.3%. The increase was
mainly attributable to higher sub-contracting income.

Other net gains, mainly fair value gain from derivative financial instruments and
net foreign exchange gains, rose 326.1% to HK$50.7 million (2007: HK$11.9
million). Gain on derivative financial instruments represented the mark-to-
market gain on valuation for forward contracts entered to hedge the currency
fluctuations against the US dollar and Renminbi.

Distribution and selling expenses were HK$181.0 million (2007: HK$130.5
million), representing an increase of HK$50.5 million, or 38.7%. The rise was
due mainly to higher freight charges resulting from the surge in oil price and
higher customer claims due to a temporary production adjustment caused
by the installation of new production equipment. The management believes
that despite the short-term hiccups, the equipment upgrade will improve the
operational efficiency and competitiveness of the Group in the long run.

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2008
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Business Review (Continued)

Overview (Continued)

During the year, general and administrative expenses were HK$170.9 million
(2007: HK$169.4 million), representing a slight increase of HK$1.5 million
or 0.9%. The increase was mainly due to the share-based compensation
expenses and additional legal and professional fees after the listing of the
Group. The increase was alleviated by the HK$9.6 million gain on disposal
of aged equipment and replacement of more advanced model to improve
efficiency. The Group maintained an efficient cost structure and will continue
to exercise a tight cost control.

For the 2008 Financial Year, our operating profit was HK$453.5 million (2007:
HK$686.5 million), representing a decrease of HK$233 million, or 33.9%.

As a result of funds raised from our listing on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange in May 2007 and positive cash flow generated from operations,
finance income for the 2008 Financial Year was HK$44.3 million (2007:
HK$4.5 million), an increase HK$39.8 million compared to last year. The
reduction of borrowings and interest rates has contributed to a decrease in
finance costs by HK$8.9 million, or 21.1% to HK$33.3 million (2007: HK$42.2
million) for the 2008 Financial Year.

Customers and Products

Leveraging on the long-standing and close relationship with leading brand
owners, the Group’s sales volume reached 155 million pounds, with blended
average selling price up by 1% to HK$27.6 per pound. Well established
relationships with leading brands such as Calvin Klein, Liz Claiborne,
Maidenform, Marks & Spencer, Triumph, UNIQLO, VF Intimates and Victoria’'s
Secret, allowed the Group to enjoy stable orders. During the year, 44.5%
of the Group’s overall sales revenue was derived from its top five brand
owners. The Group closely collaborated with apparel brand owners to design
fabrics that meet customized-order preferences. The capabilities to provide
customized fabrics that suit client’s specific needs are one of the dominant
strengths of the Group, securing its leading position in the market.

As demand for quality fabrics continue to rise, the management also believes
that the China domestic market is an important market for future business
growth. As such, the Group expanded its China domestic sales team during
the year under review and will dedicate more resources towards this market
segment going forward.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Business Review (Continued)

Production Facilities

Panyu

During the year under review, the Group expanded its supporting facilities
at Panyu such as power plant, water treatment facilities and a new water
recycling plant. The completion of these facilities has put in place the
necessary infrastructures to meet the Group’s expansion in the next two
to three years. In order to improve its production efficiency, the Group has
upgraded a number of production equipment including installation of new
dyeing machines that are more cost efficient and environmentally friendly.
The Group will closely monitor the market situation and fine-tune our capacity
expansion accordingly.

Sri Lanka

The expansion plan for the Sri Lanka plant was fully completed during the
year as planned. The production capacity doubled and production volume
will be increased progressively in the coming financial year. These new
developments further enhanced the Group’s manufacturing capabilities and
operating efficiency, and enabled the Group to sustain its competitive edges
in order to capture future growth opportunities.

Strategic Partnership

SPM Automotive Textile Co., Ltd., our automotive fabric joint venture with
Suminoe Textile Co., Ltd and Marubeni Corporation, has made satisfactory
progress during the year under review. Initial product development was
completed and sales began to take off. Progress of Fillattice Pacific Limited,
our 50/50 joint venture with Fillattice S.p.A., was also on track and sales
have begun in the third quarter of the year under review. During the reporting
period, SPM Automotive Textile Co., Ltd achieved a close to breakeven
position while Fillattice Pacific Ltd. began to contribute to our profitability.
The Group believes that the two joint venture businesses will make greater
contribution to Group in the future.

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited
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Financial Review

Liquidity and Financial Information

As at 31 March 2008, our bank and cash equivalents and time deposits
totalled HK$1,175.5 million (2007: HK$226.2 million), including Hong Kong
dollar of 681.9 million, the equivalent of HK$409.6 million in US currency, the
equivalent of HK$56.9 million in Renminbi, the equivalent of HK$24.6 million
in Japanese Yen and the equivalent of HK$2.5 million in other currencies.
The bank and cash balances and time deposits are to finance the Group’s
working capital and part of the capital expenditure plans. The loans, with the
exception of a syndicated loan, are generally short-term, principally ranging
from two weeks to three months, and are denominated mainly in Hong Kong
and US dollars.

As at 31 March 2008, the Group’s total assets amounted to HK$4,403.0
million (2007: HK$3,040.9 million), representing an increase of 44.8%. Non-
current assets and current assets were HK$1,571.3 million and HK$2,831.7
million respectively. The Group has current liabilities of HK$1,122.4 million,
non-current liabilities of HK$394.6 million, minority interests of HK$46.2
million and equity attributable to shareholders of HK$2,839.8 million. The
current ratio (which is calculated on the basis of current assets over current
liabilities) was 2.5 (2007: 1.6). The gearing ratio, being the ratio of total debts
(including current and non-current borrowings and finance lease obligations)
to total assets was 15.2% (2007: 30.7%). Such decrease was mainly
attributable to the reduction in borrowings and an increased level of cash and
bank balances resulting from positive operating cash flow and the initial public
offering in May 2007. As at 31 March 2008, the Group was in a net cash
position of HK$504.4 million as opposed to a net debt position of HK$707.1
million as at 31 March 2007.

During the year under review, the Group incurred a total capital expenditure of
HK$456.9 million (2007: HK$432.4 million) in property, plant and equipment,
which was mainly used to purchase plant and machinery, and construction
projects related to cogeneration power plant, water treatment plant, water
recycling plant, automated warehouses, workshop and others.

Foreign Exchange Risk Management

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various currency
exposures, primarily with respect to the U.S. dollar and Renminbi. The
Group manages its foreign exchange risks by performing regular review and
monitoring its foreign exchange exposure. The Group will continue to enter
into forward currency contracts to manage and reduce the risk involved in the
net position in each foreign currency.
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Financial Review (Continued)

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 March 2008, the Group’s bank loans of HK$98.3 million (2007:
HK$109.1 million) were secured by certain property, plant and equipment
with a carrying amount of HK$94.9 million (2007: HK$96.8 million) and
inventories with net realisable value of HK$78 million (2007: HK$78 million).

Employees and Remuneration Policies

As at 31 March 2008, the Group had a total of 7,962 full-time employees
(2007: 6,715), 6,726 of whom were based in China, 1,055 in Sri Lanka, 171
in Hong Kong and 10 in other regions. Additional employees were recruited
to support the expansion plans at the Group’s Sri Lanka plant and to comply
with the New PRC Labour Contract Law, which was launched on 1 January
2008. There is no significant change in the Group’s remuneration policy. The
Group’s remuneration package for its employees includes salary, bonuses,
allowances and retirement benefits, based on employee’s performance, skills
and knowledge. The Group will continue to provide trainings regularly and to
offer competitive remuneration package to its staff. The Group also provides
additional benefits to its employees, such as subsidized accommodation
and meals for workers at the production facilities, and accident and medical
insurance.

In July 2007, the Company granted options to 88 eligible full-time employees
to subscribe for a total of 22,820,000 shares of the Company, representing
about 1.6% of total issued shares. The amortised fair value of share options
for the year ended 31 March 2008 amounting to approximately HK$6.5
million (2007: Nil) was charged to the income statement.

Dividends

The Board proposed to pay a final dividend of HK 7.5 cents per share for
the 2008 Financial Year. Together with the interim dividend of HK 6.5 cents
per share, the total dividend for the 2008 Financial Year will be HK 14 cents
per share. The final dividend, if approved by shareholders at the forthcoming
AGM, will be paid on or around 12 September 2008.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

EERSREEASEN

Executive Directors

Mr. WAN Wai Loi, aged 58, is an executive Director and Chairman and a
founder of our Group. Mr. Wan is responsible for production of our products
and the formulation of the overall corporate direction and business strategies
of the Group. Mr. Wan has over 35 years of experience in the textile industry.
He obtained a Bachelor of Science Degree in Chemical Engineering from
Taiwan National Cheng Kung University. Mr. Wan joined the Group in 1997
and was appointed as a Director in 2004.

Mr. TSANG Kang Po, aged 57, is an executive Director and the vice
Chairman and a founder of our Group. Mr. Tsang is responsible for sales
and marketing and the formulation of the overall corporate direction and
business strategies for the Group. Mr. Tsang has over 29 years of experience
in the textile industry. He is the vice chairman of Hong Kong Intimate Apparel
Industries’ Association. Mr. Tsang obtained a MBA degree from The Open
University of Hong Kong and a Master of Science in Business Economics
from The Chinese University of Hong Kong. Mr. Tsang joined the Group in
1997 and was appointed as a Director in 2004.

Mr. LAM Wing Tak, aged 57, is an executive Director and the Chief
Executive Officer of our Company. Mr. Lam is responsible for sales and
marketing and the formulation of the overall corporate direction and business
strategies for the Group. Mr. Lam has over 31 years of experience in the
textile industry. Mr. Lam obtained a MBA degree from The University
of Macau and a Bachelor of Business Administration from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong. Mr. Lam joined the Group in 1998 and was
appointed as a Director in 2004.

Dr. LAM King Man, aged 52, is an executive Director. Dr. Lam is responsible
for overseeing manufacturing and research and development. Dr. Lam has
over 26 years of experience in the textile, garment, dyeing and finishing
industry. Dr. Lam obtained a Ph.D. degree from the Postgraduate School
of Colour Chemistry and Colour Technology at the University of Bradford,
United Kingdom and a Higher Diploma in Textile Chemistry from Hong Kong
Polytechnic. He is a Chartered Colourist and a Fellow of The Society of Dyers
and Colourists, United Kingdom. Dr. Lam joined the Group in 1998 and was
appointed as a Director in 2004.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

EENRSREEASEHN

Non-executive Directors

Mr. CHOI Kin Chung, aged 72, is a non-executive Director and a founder
of the Group. Mr. Choi co-founded our Group in 1997 and has been the
chairman of the Group since its inception until 2005. Mr. Choi is the emeritus
chairman of the Company. He has over 40 years of experience in the textile
industry. Mr. Choi was educated in the FEfIE T K2 » #5 X (School
of Architecture, South China University of Technology) and is a Honorary
Professor of the University. He is also a Honorary Citizen of Guangzhou City.
Mr. Choi was appointed as a Director in 2004.

Mr. IP Ping Im, aged 71, is a non-executive Director. He is a co-founder and
senior partner of our Group. Mr. Ip has over 31 years of experience in the
textile industry. Mr. Ip was appointed as a Director in 2004.

Mr. HO Hsiang Ming, James, aged 49, is a non-executive Director. Mr. Ho
is a vice president of Capital International, Inc., responsible for private equity
in Asia. Prior to joining Capital International, Inc. in 1996, Mr. Ho was a vice
president of global equity investments at the Bank of America in Hong Kong.
Mr. Ho is a director of China Digital TV Holding Co. Limited, a New York
Stock Exchange listed company since November 2006 and was a director of
ON*Media Corporation, a Korea listed company, from June 2000 to March
2007. He received a Bachelor of Arts in Economics from the National Taiwan
University and an MBA from the Wharton School of Business at the University
of Pennsylvania. Mr. Ho was appointed as a Director in 2004.

Mr. LAU Yiu Tong, aged 60, is a non-executive Director. Mr. Lau has over
31 years of experience in the textile industry. Mr. Lau holds a Higher Diploma
in Textile Technology from the Hong Kong Technical College. He is a member
of the General Committee of Federation of Hong Kong Industries. Mr. Lau
was appointed as a non-executive Director in 2007.

Mr. Vivek Kalra, aged 44, alternate Director to Mr. Ho Hsiang Ming, James,
non-executive Director of the Company. Mr. Kalra is a Vice President of
Capital International, Inc., responsible for private equity business in Asia,
including India. Prior to joining Capital International, Inc. in 1999, Mr. Kalra
worked for McKinsey & Company, Inc. in New York and India. Mr. Kalra
holds directorship in Manipal Universal Learning Private Limited, India
since September 2006. Mr. Kalra previously held directorships in Mindtree
Consulting Limited, India from August 2001 to January 2008 and Deccan
Aviation Limited, India from March 2005 to July 2007, both companies are
listed on the National Stock Exchange of India. He holds an MBA from the
Stanford Graduate School of Business, USA and a Bachelor of Technology
degree in Electrical Engineering from the Indian Institute of Technology in
Bombay, India. Mr. Kalra was appointed as an alternate Director in 2008.

12 Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2008

FEHITES

BERLLE 725 ANEBIERITES RAIMA
2 — o BESLHEMO9T FIB R E M A T HER AN A
£E - HAAREEREZT2005F HERERTE ©
BEEBRNBILEER  EHBEREEBI0F
e o AL ORENERETABEER - B
BRRRBEEYE - BNAENTREMR - &
TER2004FELZEHES -

BERMEE - 7158 IEITE S - BAREEA
WAZ— VWAEREEBA ELEEHBES
BIS1FAEER - BEHEMN2004FELZTAES -

ERREE 9% FRITEF -BEER
Capital International, Inc. Z 2l 42 %, - & & s M AL
HESE® - W19964 1 A Capital International,
Inc.AT » BREEBFEEERRITRIFEHFREE
Bl4aE - B EB2006511 ARREERMALES
RO EMZ ABIREHRMNERZRBRARZ
EE 520006 A £2007F3A BER ETA
&]ON*Media CorporationZ B F » FHAHT &
EBRBEEECREEXBTEMURES LEE
AEZEEET (Wharton School of Business at the
University of Pennsylvania) 28 2 T i & 1228+
Bf] o BHRAN004FHEZTAESE -

BIBRE LA - 605% - IFMITESF » BIREHEHM
ERENFRR - BIEERAEELESZREAR
ZHOBIBESHISOR  URABEILEESESE -
BRI ER2007 FEZERIFNTES -

Vivek Kalra%t 4 -+ 4455 ' IEITESFTERRE L
£ 2 BEESE o Karat & ACapital International,
Inc.z Bl - BRETMNBRINEZLEESE
7% o B 19994 1 A Capital International, Inc. A1

Karafc S SR E BB AR AN ENEREFET
£ © Kalra 5 4 5 2006 5 9 A #& /& EN & Manipal
Universal Learning Private Limited 2 & % ° Kalra
oA ®H200148 A £20084F 1 A A ENE Mindtree
Consulting Limited 2 E % - 5 £ 20053 A &
2007 4 7 A % EN JE Deccan Aviation Limited 2 2
. UREARERNERERBTLFRSHMET -

Kalra %t 4 #5 5 2 & Stanford Graduate School of
Business BB 2 TR EREB T2 KNERE
Indian Institute of Technology 8% 2 B T2 &2
RHE B4 o Kalrast ER2008 F B Z AR T
BEo



Profile of Directors and Senior Management
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. CHAN Yue Kwong, Michael, aged 56, is an independent non-
executive Director. He is currently the executive chairman of Cafe de Coral
Holdings Limited, a Hong Kong listed company which he joined in 1984,
and has considerable experience in planning and management. Mr. Chan
is also an independent non-executive director of Starlite Holdings Limited
since 1993 and Kingboard Laminates Holdings Limited since 2006 and a
non-executive director of Tao Heung Holdings Limited in 2007, all three
companies are listed on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.
Mr. Chan holds a Bachelor of Arts, a Master’s degree in City Planning from
the University of Manitoba, Canada and an Honorary Doctorate Degree in
Business Administration from Southern California University for Professional
Studies, U.S.A. He is currently an executive committee member of the
Hong Kong Retail Management Association, general committee member
of the Employers’ Federation of Hong Kong, elected member of the Quality
Tourism Services Association, a full member of the Canadian and the Hong
Kong Institute of Planners, a Fellow of the Chartered Institute of Marketing,
Honorary President of Hong Kong Foodstuffs Association and the Honorary
Adviser of the Hong Kong Institute of Marketing. He is currently the chairman
of Business Enterprise Management Centre of the Hong Kong Management
Association and a member of the Hong Kong Tourism Board. Mr. Chan was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director in 2007.

Mr. NG Ching Wah, aged 59, is an independent non-executive Director.
Mr. Ng has over 21 years of senior management experience in the
telecommunications industry. Mr. Ng is currently the non-executive director
of HKC International Holdings Limited, a Hong Kong listed company and
director and member of the executive committee of Advanced Info Service
Public Company Limited, a Thailand listed company. He was the chief
executive officer of Hong Kong CSL Limited. He was the chief executive
officer of SmarTone Telecommunications Holdings Limited, a Hong Kong
listed company and the President of PCCW Mobility Services Limited. Mr. Ng is
the Honorary Advisor of the Communications Association of Hong Kong and
a member of the Digital 21 Strategy Advisory Committee (D21SAC). Mr. Ng
graduated from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1975, with a Bachelor
of Business and Administration. Mr. Ng was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director in 2007.

Mr. SZE Kwok Wing, Nigel, aged 51, is an independent non-executive
Director. Mr. Sze has senior management experience in the private and
investment banking industry serving high net worth clients and institutions. He
currently serves as the managing director, head of investment of Citi Wealth
Management for Asia Pacific region. Prior to his current position, Mr. Sze
was the chief executive officer of Asia-Pacific for International Private Bank,
Barclays Wealth and an executive director in the private clients division at
Morgan Stanley Asia Limited, Hong Kong. Mr. Sze holds a Master of Business
from the University of Newcastle, Australia. He is a Fellow of CPA Australia.
Mr. Sze was appointed as an independent non-executive Director in 2007.
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EENRSREEASEHN

Senior Management

Mr. LAM Hing Chau Leon, aged 50, joined the Group in 2005 and is the
chief financial officer and qualified accountant. Mr. Lam is responsible for
finance, accounting and shipping. Mr. Lam holds a Bachelor’s Degree in
Social Sciences from the University of Hong Kong. He is a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, CPA Australia, the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales. Mr. Lam also holds Master’s degrees in
Business Administration, Information Systems, Applied Finance and Electronic
Commerce. Prior to joining the Group, he was the executive director, vice
president and chief financial officer of CK Life Sciences Int’l (Holdings) Inc., a
company listed on the Growth Enterprises Market of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. KONG Yuen Ching, aged 59, joined the Group in 1998 and is the
general manager, responsible for the raw materials procurement. Mr. Kong
has over 31 years of experience in the textile industry. Mr. Kong is also a
director of Pacific Textiles Ltd, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

Mr. PANG Ping Hung, aged 57, joined the Group in 2005 and is the general
manager, responsible for the printing and finishing division of our Group. Mr.
Pang has over 31 years of experience in the textile industry.

Mr. GOONETILLEKE Rohan, aged 55, is the managing director of Textured
Jersey Lanka (Private) Limited, a subsidiary of the Company since June
2003. Mr. Goonetilleke holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Mechanical
Engineering from the University of Portsmouth, United Kingdom. Prior to
joining the Group, he was the managing director of Linea Clothing (Private)
Limited.

Mr. WU Tai Cheung, aged 50, joined the Group in 2006 and is the company
secretary and head of internal audit. Mr. Wu has over 23 years of experience
in the field of financials, auditing, accounting and secretarial matters. He
holds an MBA and is a member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants, the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong and the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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Directors’ Report
EERHE

The Board is pleased to present the annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company and the Group for 2008
Financial Year.

Principal Activities

The Company acts as an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in manufacturing and trading of textile products. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 9 to the financial
statements.

Results and Dividends
The results of the Group for the 2008 Financial Year are set out in the
consolidated income statement on page 49 of this annual report.

Prior to the Listing, a special dividend of approximately HK$72.58 per share,
totalling approximately HK$780,000,000, was paid to the then shareholders.

An interim dividend of HK 6.5 cents per share was paid on 25 January 2008
to shareholders. The Directors have recommended the payment of a final
dividend of HK 7.5 cents per share to shareholders whose names appear
on the Register of Members of the Company at the close of business on 29
August 2008.

Closure of Register of Members

The Register of Members will be closed from 26 August 2008 to 29 August
2008 (both days inclusive), during which period no transfer of shares can be
registered. In order to qualify for the final dividend, all transfers accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Hong
Kong Branch Share Registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited not later than 4:30 p.m. on 25 August 2008. Computershare Hong
Kong Investor Services Limited is located at Shops 1712-1716, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

Financial Summary

A summary of the consolidated results and consolidated balance sheet of
the Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 118 of this annual
report.

Share Capital
Details of the movements in the issued share capital of the Company during
the 2008 Financial Year are set out in note 16 to the financial statements.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Listed Securities
of the Company

During the 2008 Financial Year, neither the Company, nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed
securities.

Pre-emptive Rights
There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles, or the law of
Cayman Islands, being the jurisdiction in which the Company is incorporated
under which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata
basis to existing shareholders.
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Reserves
Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group during the 2008
Financial Year are set out in note 17 to the financial statements.

In addition to the retained profits of the Company, the share premium
and capital reserve of the Company are also available for distribution to
shareholders provided that the Company will be able to pay its debts as they
fall due in the ordinary course of business immediately following the date on
which any such distribution is proposed to be paid.

At 31 March 2008, the sum of the retained earnings, the share premium,
share-based reserve and the capital reserve of the Company amounted to
approximately HK$1,882,242,000.

Property, Plant and Equipment
Expenditure of approximately HK$456,948,000 was incurred during the 2008
Financial Year primarily to expand the production capacity of the Group.

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group are
set out in note 8 to the financial statements.

Principal Subsidiaries
Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31 March 2008 are set out
in note 9 to the financial statements.

Donations
During the 2008 Financial Year, the Group made charitable and other
donation totalling approximately HK$1,567,000 (2007: HK$354,000).

Capitalised interest
During the 2008 Financial Year, no interest had been capitalised.

Directors and Directors’ Service Contracts
The Directors of the Company during the 2008 Financial Year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. WAN Wai Loi (Chairman)

Mr. TSANG Kang Po (Vice Chairman)

Mr. LAM Wing Tak (Chief Executive Officer)
Dr. LAM King Man

Non-executive Directors

Mr. CHOI Kin Chung

Mr. IP Ping Im

Mr. HO Hsiang Ming, James

Mr. LAU Yiu Tong

Mr. Vivek KALRA (appointed on 19 May 2008)
(Alternate Director to Mr. Ho Hsiang Ming, James)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. CHAN Yue Kwong, Michael

Mr. NG Ching Wah

Mr. SZE Kwok Wing, Nigel
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Directors and Directors’ Service Contracts (Continued)
Pursuant to article 130 of the Articles, at every AGM one-third of the
Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three,
then the number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from
office by rotation provided that every Director (including those appointed
for a specific term) shall be subject to retirement at least once every three
years. Accordingly, Mr. Wan Wai Loi, Mr. Tsang Kang Po, Dr. Lam King Man
and Mr. Ho Hsiang Ming, James will retire by rotation from the Board at the
forthcoming AGM and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election as
Directors.

Each of the executive Directors had entered into a service agreement with the
Company for an initial term of two years with effect from 1 April 2007. Each
service agreement will continue thereafter until terminated by either party by
giving to the other party at least six months’ prior notice in writing.

Each of the non-executive and independent non-executive Directors had
been appointed for an initial term of two years on the terms and conditions
effective from 1 May 2007. All Directors are subject to retirement by rotation
in accordance with the Articles and the Listing Rules.

Profile of the above Directors are set out on pages 11 to 13 of this annual
report.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM of the Company
has a service contract with Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of compensation
(other than statutory compensation).
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Directors’ interests and Short Positions in Shares

and Underlying Shares

As at 31 March 2008, the interests and/or short positions of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which they are taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO), or which were required, pursuant to Section 352
of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein, or which were
required, pursuant to the Model Code contained in the Listing Rules, to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange were as follows:

Long positions in Shares

%Emﬁﬁﬁnifﬁ B 1D 2 FE = Rk
=

R2008F3H31H  EFRANAITTHAEIHNA
NEINEAEEE (E&RES RS KRHIEXV
)RRk - BRI RiEHF - B EIREES
REAEGRPIEXVERE 7 RE8H B A AN A &) M B
AR R AR (BEESREESRSE
GO 2 HEREFIRBEENERIAR) § K
RIEES NS IEHIFE352(58 B I RIEZIEA
FHREMELMEBE LR ZZEFRZAN
SAAR RERTHES R SOKEIT

Rtpzira

Number of issued Shares held and nature of interest

FEBTROEE RERMEE
Approximate
percentage of
Name of issued share
Director/ Personal Family Corporate Trust capital of
Chief Executive Note interests interests interests interests Total Company
RADQTF
BRTRA
S /THAREE Mzt BARS FERER EEER Eatis k- G O
Choi Kin Chung 1 - - - 171,102,000 171,102,000 11.94%
g@h
Ip Ping Im 2 - 1,600,000 400,900,000 - 402,500,000 28.09%
R
Lam King Man 3 - - 30,000,000 - 30,000,000 2.09%
L83
Lam Wing Tak 4 2,084,000 200,000 100,000,000 - 102,284,000 7.14%
MEE
Lau Yiu Tong 51,229,000 - - - 51,229,000 3.58%
ZEX
Tsang Kang Po 5 1,176,000 - 100,000,000 - 101,176,000 7.06%
BER
Wan Wai Loi 6 1,743,000 - 100,000,000 - 101,743,000 7.10%
FER
Notes: et -

1. These shares in the Company are directly held by Silver Bay International Holdings
Limited, whose issued share capital is wholly-owned by Trustcorp Limited, the
trustee of the United Harmony Trust, a discretionary trust. For the purposes of the
SFO, Mr. Choi Kin Chung is the founder of the United Harmony Trust.
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1. ZEARQFR B Silver Bay International Holdings
Limited B # 3%/ i Trustcorp Limited 2 21 #
A Silver Bay International Holdings Limited 2 &
BT ° Trustcorp Limited /4 B # {2 5E United
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Directors’ interests and Short Positions in Shares
and Underlying Shares (continueq)
Notes: (Continued)

2. These shares in the Company are directly held by Far East Asia Limited, whose
issued share capital is wholly-owned by Mr. Ip Ping Im.

3. These shares in the Company are directly held by Effective Approach Technology
Limited, whose issued share capital is 50% owned by Dr. Lam King Man and
50% owned by the spouse of Dr. Lam King Man.

4. These shares in the Company are directly held by Fifth Element Enterprises
Limited, whose issued share capital is 75% owned by Mr. Lam Wing Tak and
25% owned by the spouse of Mr. Lam Wing Tak.

5. These shares in the Company are directly held by Top Strong Holdings Limited,
whose issued share capital is 50% owned by Mr. Tsang Kang Po and 50%
owned by the spouse of Mr. Tsang Kang Po.

6. These shares in the Company are directly held by Hollywood Pacific Limited,
whose issued capital is 25% owned by Mr. Wan Wai Loi and 25% owned by the
spouse of Mr. Wan Wai Loi.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or chief executive of the
Company, as at 31 March 2008, had any interests and/or short positions
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
and short positions which they are taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO), or which were required, pursuant to the Model Code
contained in the Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

At no time during the 2008 Financial Year were the rights to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in the Company granted to any
Directors or their respective spouse or minor children, or were any such rights
exercised by them; or was the Company, its holding company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire
such rights in any other body corporate.

BEERROMAERBERKR G 2R KR
yXC))
far - ()

2. EARQRIMR HFar East Asia Limited B #3355 -
T £k 5 4 2 80 8 Far East Asia Limited 2 &
BITIRA -

3. ZEARRFRD i Effective Approach Technology
Limted B F5A - MR B+ R ERB D RI%H
HEffective Approach Technology Limited 2 50% 2.
BATHRAK ©

4. % % K R A K1 A Fith Element Enterprises
Limited B #FH - MARKEEERERBD HI#
A Fifth Element Enterprises Limited 2 75% & 25%
BEITIRA -

5 % EAN AR A Top Strong Holdings Limited
HERE  MERREEREREBS BIHATop
Strong Holdings Limited 2 50% 2 31 TAZ A ©

6. ZEARERD A Hollywood Pacific Limited & #
#H - MABRKLEREEBES 55 Hollywood
Pacific Limited Z 25% B 31T & A °

B E3OREEE SN - 1R20085F3A31H » HIEEE
RARBITBAERARARREEBEZE(ERL
Er LB RIIEXVER) Wi - BN RE
o BEAREES MEERIIEXVIEET R
FE8NHANE AN R B AT R &,k
B (BRERSRIEES LIEER 2R ERE L
BREBNERIOAR) + IEARBHN EHH
AR AE ST BIZR F & A B R B A2 P O (E (o] #E 2
/KR -

R2008F W I FE AR - SIEEMESRE
EEANEBRAXNFE FRERTEBALRA
IR D MESE T - SREEITEE ML EER
MER : AR R] ~ HIERA RS EEAHEA
AMELETALE  RSESREAEME
ABBRESHEEF -
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EERHRE

Substantial Shareholders’ interests and Short

Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares

So far as any Director or the chief executive of the Company is aware, as
at the 31 March 2008, the following persons (not being Directors or chief
executive of the Company) who had an interest or short position in the Shares
or underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under

the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or who was (directly

or indirectly) interested in 10% or more of the nominal value of any class
of the share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general
meetings of any other member of the Group were as follows:

Long positions in Shares

Name of
substantial shareholder Note
TZRREH Mzt
Chiu Bo Lan 1
HEH

2
Hollywood Pacific Limited 1
Lam Wai Yee
MEE

3
Far East Asia Limited 4
Wong Bik Ha

5

6
Fifth Element Enterprises Limited 5
Law Oi Mui 7
BTN

20 Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited
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Nature of interest

Iy

Bt

\

Interest of a controlled corporation
REFEHER 2 #H
Interest of spouse

[

Beneficial owner

BEEAA

Beneficial owner
BEREEA
Interest of spouse

BBz i

Beneficial owner

EEBEAA

Beneficial owner

ERBEAA

Interest of a controlled corporation
RUBEHER 2 #E

Interest of spouse

[ 3

Beneficial owner

BEREERA

Interest of spouse

[

FERRARDFEBERGD 2R
)57

AR EERARQFTHRAAEFTANE - 720084
3A31H M FALZ(FEESFH AR RITEHEAR)
RN SRR P B BRIEEH RS 50
EXVEBZE2 37 BV IR RIAN A B8 B8 MO RE 2 ok
B NEERHEREENEREANAIEEABERT
RALEEREMKE RARMBRERE EHREMR
BRI AT {E10%8 A F S SRR

R 2HE
Approximate
percentage
interest of
issued share
Number of Aggregate capital of
issued Shares long position the Company
RADFAERT
BRTROEE Ry  RAZBHNESL
100,000,000 101,743,000 7.10%
1,743,000
100,000,000 100,000,000 6.98%
1,600,000 402,500,000 28.09%
400,900,000
400,900,000 400,900,000 27.98%
200,000 102,284,000 7.14%
100,000,000
2,084,000
100,000,000 100,000,000 6.98%
171,102,000 171,102,000 11.94%
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Substantial Shareholders’ interests and Short
Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares (continueq)

Long positions in Shares Continued)

Name of
substantial shareholder Note
TERRER Mzt
Trustcorp Limited 8
Silver Bay International 8
Holdings Limited
Wong Mei Ling 9
BXR
10
Top Strong Holdings Limited 9
The Capital Group Companies, Inc.
Capital Group International, Inc.
Capital International, Inc.
11
Capital International 11
Investments IV, LLC
Capital International 11
Investments IV, L.P.
Capital International Private 11

Equity Fund IV, L.P.

Nature of interest
BRitE

Trustee

RHEA

Beneficial owner

BEEEAA

Interest of a controlled corporation
RUFEHER 2B
Interest of spouse

Boff 2 s

Beneficial owner

BEREAA

Interest of a controlled corporation

REREHER S

Interest of a controlled corporation
RUFEHER 2 #H

Interest of a controlled corporation
REFEHER 2 #H

Investment manager

RELE

Interest of a controlled corporation

REREHER S

Interest of a controlled corporation

RAeREHER 2R

Beneficial owner

BERERA

FERRRRDMBRER D 2

NI
¥4 /ﬁ B ()

RID 2R ()

Approximate

percentage

interest of

issued share

Number of Aggregate capital of

issued Shares long position the Company

RADRERT

ERTROAR HREYH RAZENESL

171,102,000 171,102,000 11.94%

171,102,000 171,102,000 11.94%

100,000,000 101,176,000 7.06%

1,176,000

100,000,000 100,000,000 6.98%

123,600,000 123,600,000 8.63%

123,600,000 123,600,000 8.63%

123,600,000 123,600,000 8.63%

123,600,000 123,600,000 8.63%

119,620,100 119,620,100 8.35%

119,620,100 119,620,100 8.35%

BAGBIERAERD 21
2008F F 3R]



Directors’ Report
=EERHE

Substantial Shareholders’ interests and Short

Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares (continued)
Long positions in Shares Continued)
Notes:

1.

22

Hollywood Pacific Limited is 25% owned by Mr. Wan Wai Loi and 25% owned by
Ms. Chiu Bo Lan, the spouse of Mr. Wan Wai Loi.

Ms. Chiu Bo Lan is the spouse of Mr. Wan Wai Loi, a Director.
Ms. Lam Wai Yee is the spouse of Mr. Ip Ping Im, a Director.
Far East Asia Limited is wholly-owned by Mr. Ip Ping Im, a Director.

Fifth Element Enterprises Limited is 75% owned by Mr. Lam Wing Tak and 25%
owned by Ms. Wong Bik Ha, the spouse of Mr. Lam Wing Tak.

Ms. Wong Bik Ha is the spouse of Mr. Lam Wing Tak, a Director.
Ms. Law Oi Mui is the spouse of Mr. Choi Kin Chung, a Director.

Silver Bay International Holdings Limited is wholly-owned by Trustcorp Limited,
the trustee of the United Harmony Trust, a discretionary trust. For the purposes
of the SFO, Mr. Choi Kin Chung, a Director, is the founder of the United Harmony
Trust.

Top Strong Holdings Limited is 50% owned by Mr. Tsang Kang Po and 50%
owned by Ms. Wong Mei Ling, the spouse of Mr. Tsang Kang Po.

Ms. Wong Mei Ling is the spouse of Mr. Tsang Kang Po, a Director.

Capital International Private Equity Fund IV, L.P. is a private equity fund managed
by Capital International, Inc. Capital International Investments IV, L.P. is the
general partner of Capital International Private Equity Fund IV, L.P. The general
partner of Capital International Investments IV, L.P. is Capital International
Investments IV, LLC, which is also the general partner of CGPE IV L.P., an
employee securities fund formed to invest side-by-side with Capital International
Private Equity Fund IV, L.P. Capital International, Inc. is the managing member of
Capital International Investments IV, LLC.

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2008
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1. FERELERAEREGBHEEIXTIH>ANES
Hollywood Pacific Limited 2 25%# 25

2. HMEBATAESIFERLEZRRB -
3. MEEZLTAEFEMMITEZRS -
4.  Far East Asia Limited R E SERAMEE2EHH -

5. MEBEEEREMRBREEE LT H 5 A Ffth
Element Enterprises Limited 2 75% &% 25%#£ % ©

6. HEBXIREFEMERAELZERS -
7. BREBLI/ERHEEPELEZERS -

8. Silver Bay International Holdings Limited f3 Trustcorp
Limited 2 & #74 * Trustcorp Limited & Y42 {Z 5T
United Harmony TrustZ {55EA © B85 R EAE K
s - EBHEZEH LA AUnited Harmony Trust
ZEIPEA ©

9. BHEREERERBEERX T HI%E Top
Strong Holdings Limited 2 50%#&£#

10. EXRBRAEIREFGHENTLEZERS -

11.  Capital International Private Equity Fund IV, L.P.J}
i Capital International, Inc. B2 2 FLEFHFES ©
Capital International Investments IV, L.P. & Capital
International Private Equity Fund IV, LP.Z ¥@B4&
# A ° Capital International Investments IV, L.P.Z
T @B E % A A Capital International Investments
IV, LLC ' % ARIINACGPE IV, LP.Z¥BE%
A°CGPEIVLP.REEEFES  KIZAH
/% B2 Capital International Private Equity Fund IV,
L.P.# R & ° Capital International, Inc. % Capital
International Investments IV, LLC 2 & B X & &
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Substantial Shareholders’ interests and Short

Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares (continueq)
Long positions in shares and underlying shares of any other
member in the Group

FTERRARMDAMBBERD 2R
RRB @)
RAEEFMEMmSEE AT 2R RIEE
B ziFe

Approximate

Name of percentage

Name of member substantial Nature Number of of issued

of the Group shareholder Note of interest issued shares share capital

RAATCET

AEEHENRER TERRAR i3 BRME BRTRO#E RAZBOBEAH

Textured Jersey Lanka Brandix Lanka Limited 1 Beneficial owner 76,666,992 40%

(Private) Limited EREEA

Note: His

1. Textured Jersey Lanka (Private) Limited is owned as to 60% by Pacific Textured 1. Pacific Textured Jersey Holdings Ltd. }Brandix

Jersey Holdings Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and 40% by
Brandix Lanka Limited.

Save as disclosed above, so far as is known to any Director or chief executive
of the Company, as at 31 March 2008, no other person had an interest or
short position in the Shares or underlying Shares of the Company which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or who was directly or indirectly, interested in
10% or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights
to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of any member of the Group.

Arrangements to Purchase Shares or Debentures
At no time during the 2008 Financial Year was the Company, its holding
companies, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries, a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

Lanka Limited 5 5l # B Textured Jersey Lanka
(Private) Limited 60% X 40% # %z  Pacific
Textured Jersey Holdings Ltd. AR A2 &2 &
MEBAR -

B EXETIRTEEIN AR RIMESRHITHE
P&l > 20083 A31H » BEHEM A TR
NERD S ARRERL (0 R A AR IBE S M EIR
BIZEXVEBEE2 KR35 SR E S A AN A Bl 58 2 i s ok
KB REEXEEBREEWNERAEBERL TR
REBITAKERRIBRREANE LIREZTMER
AR ARTEEZE10% A E 2 RERSRA -

BERONESF 2L
ART - EERA RSN A A KK
B2 A)IN2008%F B B F [T RS R AR 2 AT
AR JEEFTHBALDARETEL A
HEAERZ IR S T e -
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Share Option Scheme
Pursuant to the written resolutions of shareholder of the Company passed on
27 April 2007, the Company adopted a Share Option Scheme.

A. Summary of the Share Option Scheme

1.

Purpose

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide the
Company with a flexible means of retaining, incentivising,
rewarding, remunerating, compensating and/or providing benefits
to Eligible Persons (as defined in paragraph 2 below).

Participants

The Board may grant options to any “Eligible Person”, namely an
employee, Director or non-executive Director (including INED) of
any Member of the Group.

“Member of the Group” means the Company, any holding
company, subsidiaries or affiliates of the Company or other
companies or associated companies of the Company which the
Board determines will be subject to the Share Option Scheme.

Maximum number of Shares

(@ Overriding limit
The overall limit on the number of Shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and not yet
exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other
scheme must not exceed 30% of the Shares of the Company
in issue from time to time (“Overriding Limit”). No options
may be granted under the Share Option Scheme or any
other schemes if this will result in the Overriding Limit being
exceeded.

(b)  10% limit

Subject to the Overriding Limit and paragraphs 3(c) and 3(d)
below, the total number of Shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options (excluding options which have
lapsed in accordance with the terms of the Share Option
Scheme and any other schemes) to be granted under the
Share Option Scheme and any other schemes must not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the Shares in issue as at the date
of Listing (the “Listing Date”), representing 143,293,600
Shares.
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Share Option Scheme (Continued)
A. Summary of the Share Option Scheme (Continued)
Maximum number of Shares (Continued)

3.

(@)

(@

(e

Refreshing the 10% limit

The Company may “refresh” the 10% limit under paragraph
3(b) above at any time subject to prior shareholder approval in
general meeting. However, the total number of Shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted
under the Share Option Scheme and any options to be
granted under any other scheme under the limit as “refreshed”
shall not exceed 10% of the Shares of the Company in issue
at the date on which shareholders approve the “refreshed”
limit (where applicable). Options previously granted under the
Share Option Scheme and any other scheme (including those
outstanding, cancelled, lapsed in accordance with the terms
of the relevant scheme, or exercised options) will not be
counted for the purpose of calculating the limit as “refreshed”.

Exceeding the 10% limit

The Company may grant options to any Eligible Person(s)
specifically identified by it which would cause the 10% limit
under paragraph 3(b) above (including, for the avoidance of
doubt, any such limit as “refreshed” under paragraph 3(c)
above) to be exceeded, but only with the prior approval of
the shareholders in general meeting, and subject always to
the Overriding Limit and the Individual Limit (as defined in
paragraph 3(e) below).

Individual limit

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted to each Eligible Person
(including exercised and outstanding options) in any
12-month period must not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue
at the date of grant of the option (“Individual Limit”). Any
further grants of options to an Eligible Person which would
result in the Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
all options granted and to be granted to that Eligible Person
(including exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) in
the 12-month period up to and including the date of such
further grant representing in aggregate over 1% of the Shares
in issue, such further grant must be subject to prior approval
of the shareholders in general meeting with such Eligible
Person and his associates (as defined in the Listing Rules)
abstaining from voting.
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Share Option Scheme (Continued)
A. Summary of the Share Option Scheme (Continued)

26

4.

Grant of options to connected persons

Each grant of options to a Director (including an INED), chief
executive or substantial shareholder (as defined in the Listing
Rules) of the Company, or any of their respective associates,
must be approved by the INEDs (excluding any INED who is the
proposed grantee of the options).

Where any grant of options to a substantial shareholder or an
INED, or any of their respective associates, would result in the
Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all options
already granted and to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme (including options exercised, cancelled and outstanding)
to such person in the 12-month period up to and including the
date of such grant:

(@ representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the Shares in issue;
and

(b) having an aggregate value, based on the closing price of the
Shares at the date of each grant, in excess of HK$5 million,

such grant of options must be approved by the shareholders in
general meeting. Any shareholder who is a connected person (as
defined under the Listing Rules) of the Company must abstain from
voting in favor of the resolution to approve such grant of options.

Performance conditions

Unless the Board otherwise determines (on a case-by-case basis)
and specifies in the offer of grant of an option to a grantee, a
grantee is not required to achieve any performance conditions or
targets before the grantee’s options can be exercised.
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Share Option Scheme (continued)
A. Summary of the Share Option Scheme (Continued)
6. Time of exercise of options and duration of Share Option
Scheme

(@

(b)

General vesting period
The general vesting period for options granted under the
Share Option Scheme is set out in the table below unless the
Board specifies a different vesting period under the terms of
the offer. The option period will not be more than 10 years
from the date of grant.

Anniversary of grant date

First
Second
Third
Fourth
Fifth

An option may be exercised to the extent that it has vested
and any performance conditions or targets set by the Board
have been met.

Duration of the Share Option Scheme
The duration of the Share Option Scheme shall be 10 years
from the Listing Date.

7. Exercise price and payment on grant

@

(®)

Exercise price

The exercise price for the Shares under the Share Option
Scheme shall be the price determined by the Board and
notified to the option holder which shall not be less than the
higher of:

()  the average closing price of the Shares for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant
of the option as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheets;

(i)  the closing price of the Shares as stated on the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet of the Shares on the
date of grant of the option; and

(i)~ the nominal value of the Shares.

Payment on grant

Eligible Persons are not required to pay for the acceptance of
an option granted to them.
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Vesting
=

20%
20%
20%
20%
20%
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Share Option Scheme (Continued)
A. Summary of the Share Option Scheme (Continued)
8. Rights attaching to the Shares

(@

(b)

Dividends and voting rights

No dividends (including distributions made upon
the liquidation of the Company) will be payable and
no voting rights will be exercisable in relation to an
option that has not been exercised. Shares issued
or transferred on the exercise of an option will rank
equally in all respects with the Shares in issue on the
date of issue or transfer. They will not rank for any
rights attaching to Shares by reference to a record
date preceding the date of issue or transfer.

Restrictions on transfer

Except for the transmission of an option on the
death of an option holder to his/her personal
representatives, options granted under the Share
Option Scheme are personal to the grantee and
neither the option nor any rights in respect of it may
be transferred, assigned or otherwise disposed of
by any option holder to any other person or entity.
If an option holder transfers, assigns or disposes
of any such option or rights, whether voluntarily or
involuntarily, then the relevant option will immediately
lapse.

9. Lapsing provisions

(@

(®)

Immediate lapse

An option will lapse immediately on the earlier of (i) the
tenth anniversary of the date the option was granted;
(i) breach of the transfer restrictions referred to in
paragraph 8(b) above; and (i) subject to paragraphs
9(b) to 9(e) below, the option holder ceasing to be an
Eligible Person.

Any circumstances

The Board may specify at the date of grant of the
option any circumstances in which the option may
lapse.
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Share Option Scheme (Continued)
A. Summary of the Share Option Scheme (Continued)
Lapsing provisions (Continued)

9.

(@)

(d)

(e

®

Death, illness, retirement, redundancy or transfer

In the event of death, serious iliness or injury, retirement,
redundancy, transfer of the business or sale of the Member
of the Group by which the option holder is employed or
appointed, or any other circumstance which the Board
decides, then any unvested options will lapse and any vested
options must be exercised within 12 months or such longer
period as the Board may determine. Any vested option not
exercised within this period shall lapse.

Resignation, misconduct or breach of contract

If an option holder resigns or if he or she is guilty of
misconduct justifying the termination of his or her
employment/appointment or if the option holder is in breach
of any material term of his or her employment/appointment
or any confidentiality agreement, non-competition agreement
or non-solicitation agreement, then all options held by the
option holder will lapse, whether the option is vested or not.

Cessation of employment for any other reason

If an option holder ceases to be an employee for any other
reason not set out in paragraphs 9(c) or 9(d) above, then
any unvested options will immediately lapse and any vested
options must be exercised within 30 days of the date of
cessation of employment or such longer period as the Board
may determine.

Change of control, compromise or arrangement

In the event of a change of control of the Company or
compromise or arrangement, an option holder may exercise
an option to the extent it has vested within 30 days of the
date of the relevant event subject to any conditions which
must be satisfied. However, the above will not apply to the
extent that an offer to exchange the option (in whole or in
part) is made and accepted by the option holder or if the
Board with the consent of the person acquiring Shares
decides that the option will be automatically exchanged.
Where an option is to be exchanged, the option holder will be
granted a new option to replace the option granted under the
Share Option Scheme but on the same terms and subject to
the same rules.
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Share Option Scheme (Continued)
A. Summary of the Share Option Scheme (Continued)

30

9.

Lapsing provisions (Continued)

(9 Winding-up
In the event of a voluntary winding-up or court sanctioned
winding-up, vested options may be exercised within 3
months of the date of the resolution or the date of the
winding-up order (whichever is applicable). All vested options
not exercised within the 3-month period will lapse and
unvested options will lapse at the end of the 3-month period.

(h)  Cancellation of options

The Board may cancel any option only if (i) the option holder
is paid an amount equal to fair market value of the Shares
subject to the option less the exercise price (see paragraph
7 above); or (ii) the option holder is granted replacement
options of equivalent value; or (i) the Board makes such
arrangements as the option holder may agree to compensate
for the cancellation of the option.

10. Adjustments

11.

If there is a special dividend, dividend in specie, demerger,
capitalisation of profits or reserves, rights issue, consolidation
or subdivision of Shares or reduction of the share capital of the
Company (or other variation of capital), the Board may make such
adjustments (if any) as they consider reasonable to (i) the number
of Shares, (i) the kind of securities subject to the option; and/or (i)
the exercise price, as the auditor or independent financial adviser
appointed by the Board shall certify in writing to the Board to be in
their opinion fair and reasonable in compliance with Rule 17.03(13)
of the Listing Rules and the notes thereto and the supplementary
guidance issued on 5 September 2005 by the Stock Exchange,
except where such adjustment is made on a capitalisation issue.

Amendments to the Share Option Scheme

The Board may amend any of the provisions of the Share Option
Scheme (including, without limitation, amendments in order to
comply with changes in legal or regulatory requirements and
amendments in order to waive any restrictions imposed by the
provisions of the Share Option Scheme, other than those imposed
by Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules) at any time (but not so as
to affect adversely any rights which have accrued to any option
holder at that date).

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2008

BRETSe

A.

BB RT B E ()
9.  KRMUFESL(E)
@ B8

10.

11.

WARR BRBRIVEETSE
8B CHEBBRERTORERA
His)E < AER3E A A (AE
RERE)ITE - FIER3MEAH
BARTTREZERBBRERS
X AR 5 B R B R 31 A
HAFR AR RO

(h) B

EEZREURUTBRTFHEBER
T ()WE mEERERE A8
ERBRIEMSRMHHOAFHE
BITHEEE 2R EE (GER L&Y
B iR ER B ACERS
B BREEEH HHESR
LA (80 R 5 B AR 1 BE A A
BEATRBREZLHE -

=
HEERIRE - BWIRE - D9 &
SREEEAL - HAR - BRIDA BRI
SR AR 2 BN (S E A AR AR & D)
BEERAG)IE  (i)BERAERT Y R E
FEP RS iNTEEELBEBA
B(IA) - MIRIBEE TR 200559 A
583z ETRBIF17.03(13) 15 K BE
MIHT R A TEIES] - BREAEEERE
ERFFET 2 % EAD 5 I8 S B A5 BRI A
EEZREAATAIE - EWMEABRRED
B BEITVEH BRI o

BT &2 18R]
E=RAINMEAE RIS T BT ST
AR - BREENRRELERTATE
FERAROIREEE - USRS
PRt BURSCZ RBIEHRER] - 1L
RAEA7TEREMZREIRIBRIN - W
BRERI TR S E R TABRESA A
ERESBREATMZE -



Directors’ Report
=EERHE

Share Option Scheme (Continued)
A. Summary of the Share Option Scheme (Continued)

11.

12.

13.

Amendments to the Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The specific provisions of the Share Option Scheme which relate
to the matters set out in Rule 17.03 of the Listing Rules cannot be
altered to the advantage of option holders unless prior shareholder
approval is obtained. Changes to the authority of the Board in
relation to the alteration to any of the terms of the Share Option
Scheme may only be made with the approval of the shareholders
in general meeting.

Any amendment to the terms and conditions of the Share
Option Scheme or the terms and conditions of an option which
are of a material nature may only be made with the approval
of the shareholders save where the amendments take effect
automatically under the Share Option Scheme.

Termination and suspension

(@ Automatic termination
The Share Option Scheme will terminate automatically at
midnight on the day immediately before the 10th anniversary
of the Listing Date.

(b)  Termination by the Board

The Board may terminate the Share Option Scheme at any
time by resolving that no further options shall be granted
under the Share Option Scheme. Once terminated, no new
offers to grant Options under the Scheme will be made and
the Board may determine whether Options which have been
previously granted but not yet exercised shall either continue
to be subject to the terms of the Share Option Rules (which
shall remain in full force and effect to the extent necessary to
give effect to such Options) or be cancelled in accordance
with paragraph 9(h) above.

(c) Suspension

The Board may in the event of specific and unusual
circumstances (including but not limited to capital operations
requiring adjustment or redefinition of the share capital of
the Company or significant negative variations in the income
statement or balance sheet of the Company) at any time
suspend the exercise of outstanding options to the extent
not contrary to relevant law. Each suspension(s) shall not be
for more than 3 months. The Board shall give at least 8 days
written notice to the option holders specifying the starting
date of suspension, its duration and the expected date of
resumption of the relevant suspended rights.

Status of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme has been approved by the Stock
Exchange for the listing of and permission to deal in the Shares
which may fall to be issued pursuant to the exercise of the options
granted under the Share Option Scheme.

BRETSe
BRETESMEG)

A.

11.

12.

13.

PBRERT B2 ERT (8)

RS AREN EMRRIZE17.03
2 EE B EGEHTAELAFR
BRERAAZEZD  RIFCEERSE
TR - EERRAERBRRNBIR
ReERT A ESNERESERERRE
Pt BIRE T ROMGAR o

RS B BRI R IR 2 T
AIEAIEET - AERIRILETT RIVES -
MR BR8] A By BB AR
B o

KRR

(@ BB
BRETEENEE LTEE T
BEEBRERMN—RAEREAH
BRAE o

) HEFSKI
EXZRAERATHBIREERE
FTEIR TREARAE - WRERFAR IERT
2l o BEARREAT B — R IE - A
TeREBREFZBTRER
FHERE  MEFRARATZ
AMERBERTTENERIEES
BT I RT B 2 AEFGRR (1
FERBRR T BB RERK
FREEBREAR)  HIRELX
FO(n)ER Pl F IARESS -

) E=
EERAEREBEEHERIE—
BEBER T (BREETRERRESE
EEEABSETARAIRA
HARREERIEEAERL
REXEAEE)  ETEBFEE
IR 2 150 T RER B F 1 R 1T
FRERENTTE - BRXEENE
BEIEA - EERELR THERE
BEARLSRANE®BANY -
WHEBMNEANHNFEEHFHEA B
- REAFI BB E EEFMNIE
HARIE AR B R o

BRETTEZER

AR R X PR IR B A A B
P ih 2 BE T TE M /AR T2 XD
tTAREE -

BAGBIERAERD 31
2008F F 3R]



Directors’ Report
EERRE

Share Option Scheme (continued)

B. Options granted by the Company
As at 31 March 2008, options to subscribe for an aggregate of
22,230,000 shares of the Company granted to eligible full-time
employees pursuant to the terms of the Share Option Scheme remained
outstanding, details of which were as follows:

%k%ﬁ%w
RANTRRH 2 BIRE
R2008F3A31H + RIEBARHEST 8 2 153K
%%Aéﬁ 2R 8 LARREE 4 22,230,000
AR RIS 2 BB & R 1TE - BB
ZIDT-

Number of share options

BREHE
Date of grant Outstanding Granted Exercised Lapsed Cancelled Outstanding
as at during during during during as at
1 April 2007 the period the period the period the period 31 March 2008
200754418 42008537315
Rt A HATE  RABEREE  ABBRTE RARBRAN RERERESE i RATHE
18 July 2007 - 22,820,000 - 590,000 - 22,230,000

200747188

The fair value of options granted is approximately at an average of
HK$1.222 per share on the basis of binominal model (the “Model”). The
significant inputs into the Model were the closing price of the Share of
the Company at the date of grant of HK$4.8 per share, annual risk-
free interest rate of approximately 4.8%, an expected option life of
approximate six years, expected volatility of 32% and annual dividend
yield of 4%. The amortised fair value of share options for the year ended
31 March 2008 amounting to approximately HK$6,533,000 (2007: Nil)
was charged to the income statement.

The Model was developed for use in estimating fair value of traded
options that are fully transferable. The Model requires input of highly
subjective assumptions, including the expected stock price volatility.
Since the Company’s share options have characteristics significantly
different from those of traded options, and because change in the
subjective input assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimate,
the Model does not necessarily provide a reliable measure of the fair
value of the share options.

The options are exercisable from 18 July 2010 to 17 July 2017 (both
days inclusive) up to 100% of the options at an exercise price of
HK$5.04 per share. The closing price of the share of the Company
immediately before the date of grant was HK$4.86 per share.

No option had been granted to the Directors, chief executive or
substantial shareholders of the Company or their respective associates
under the Share Option Scheme since its adoption.

Directors’ interests in Contracts

There was no contract of significance, to which the Company, or its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the 2008 Financial Year
or at any time during the 2008 Financial Year.
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Competing interest and Non-compete Undertaking
None of Directors had, either directly or indirectly, an interest in a business
which causes or may cause any significant competition with the business of
the Group and any other conflicts of interest which any such person has or
may have with the Group.

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the 2008 Financial Year, sales to the Group’s five largest customers
accounted for approximately 28.7% of the Group’s total sales and the
percentage of sales attributable to the Group’s largest customer amounted
to approximately 7.0%. Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers
accounted for approximately 23.1% of the total purchases and the
percentage of purchase attributable to the Group’s largest supplier amounted
to approximately 7.9%.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder of the Company
(which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s issued shares) had any interests in the Group’s five largest
customers or suppliers noted above.

Connected Transactions
The related party transactions set out in note 33 to the financial statements
also constitute continuing connected transactions under the Listing Rules.

During the 2008 Financial Year, the Group had the following connected
transactions and continuing connected transactions not exempted under the
Listing Rules 14A.31 and 14A.33 respectively:

A. Connected Transaction
(1) Acquisition of 8% interest in PT Sri Lanka (the “8%
Acquisition”)
On 25 January 2008, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
Pacific Textured Jersey Holdings Limited (“PTJH”), entered into
an agreement with Brandix to purchase from Brandix 8% of the
issued share capital of PT Sri Lanka for a cash consideration of
US$1,630,000 (approximately HK$12,714,000). Details of the
8% Acquisition are set out in the announcement of the Company
dated 28 January 2008.

Brandix is a connected person by virtue of its 48% shareholding in
PT Sri Lanka at the time of the 8% Acquisition.
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Connected Transactions (continued)
B. Continuing Connected Transactions

34

1)

@

Sale of products to MAS Group and its associates

Sales of knitted fabrics to MAS together with its subsidiaries (‘MAS
Group”) and its associates pursuant to a sale of products master
agreement (the “MAS Sale of Products Master Agreement”) dated
30 April 2007 between the Company and MAS. Details of the MAS
Sale of Products Master Agreement are set out in the Prospectus.
Transactions took place under MAS Sale of Products Master
Agreement for the 2008 Financial Year did not exceed the annual
cap of HK$459 million.

At the time of entering the MAS Sale of Products Master
Agreement, MAS held 66.7% interests in Linea and its
subsidiaries. According to the Listing Rules, Linea was regarded
as a connected person by virtue of its 48% shareholding in PT Sri
Lanka, a subsidiary of the Company. MAS, as Linea’s associates,
was regarded a connected person as well. Linea and MAS Group
and its associates ceased to be connected persons upon the
completion of the Brandix Acquisition (as defined below).

Sale of products to Brandix Group and its associates

Sale of knitted fabric to Brandix together with its subsidiaries
(“Brandix Group”) and its associate pursuant to a sale of products
master agreement (the “Brandix Sale of Products Master
Agreement”) dated 27 August 2007 between the Company and
Brandix Group. Details of the Brandix Sale of Products Master
Agreement are set out in the circular of the Company dated 14
September 2007 (the “Circular”). Transactions took place under
the Brandix Sale of Products Master Agreement for the 2008
Financial Year did not exceed the annual cap of HK$363 million.

On 24 August 2007, Brandix acquired from Linea 48%
shareholding in PT Sri Lanka, a subsidiary of the Company (the
“Brandix Acquisition”). Following the Brandix Acquisition, Brandix
owned 48% shareholding in PT Sri Lanka. On 25 January 2008,
Brandix sold 8% interest in PT Sri Lanka to PTJH. According to
the Listing Rules, Brandix, by virtue of its shareholding in PT Sri
Lanka, a subsidiary of the Company, is a substantial shareholder
(as defined in the Listing Rules) and hence a connected person
of the Company. Brandix Group and its associates are therefore
also regarded as connected persons of the Company upon the
completion of Brandix Acquisition.
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Connected Transactions (Continued)
B. Continuing Connected Transaction (Continued)

3

4

Sale of Products to PT Sri Lanka

Sale of knitted fabrics and greige fabrics to PT Sri Lanka pursuant
to a master agreement (the “PT Sri Lanka Sale of Products Master
Agreement”) dated 30 April 2007 between the Company and
PT Sri Lanka. Details of PT Sri Lanka Sale of Products Master
Agreement are set out in the Prospectus. Transactions took place
under the PT Sri Lanka Sale Products Master Agreement for the
2008 Financial Year did not exceed the annual cap of HK$43
million.

According to the Listing Rules, PT Sri Lanka is regarded as a
connected person as PT Sri Lanka is an associate of connected
persons as mentioned above.

Sale of Products to HC Companies

Sale of knitted fabrics to companies in which Mr. Henry Choi
has substantial interest (the “HC Companies”) pursuant to a
master agreement (the “HC Companies Sale of Products Master
Agreement”) dated 30 April 2007 between the Company and the
HC Companies. Details of HC Companies Sale of Products Master
Agreement are set out in the Prospectus. Transactions took place
under the HC Companies Sale Products Master Agreement for the
2008 Financial Year did not exceed the annual cap of HK$19.6
million.

Mr. Henry Choi, who is the son of Mr. Choi Kin Chung (a Director),
is regarded as a connected person of the Company by virtue of
Listing Rule 14A.11(4)(b).

The Directors, including the INED, have reviewed the above-mentioned
continuing connected transactions made during the 2008 Financial Year
and confirmed that these transactions were entered into:

1
@

in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable to
the Company than terms available to or from independent third
parties; and

in accordance with each of the relevant agreements governing
them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of
the shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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Connected Transactions (continued)

B.

Continuing Connected Transaction (Continued)

Pursuant to Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules, the Board engaged the
auditor of the Company to perform certain factual finding procedures
on the above continuing connected transactions for the 2008 Financial
Year (the “Transactions”) on a sample basis in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Related Services 4400 “Engagements to Perform
Agreed-Upon Procedures Regarding Financial Information” issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has
reported their factual findings for the selected samples based on the
agreed procedures to the Board stating that:

(1)  the Transactions had been approved by the Directors;

(2) the pricing of Transactions in respect of provision of goods or
services by the Group (for the sample selected) were entered into
in accordance with the pricing policies of the Group;

(8) the Tansactions were entered into in accordance with the terms
of the agreements governing such transactions (for the sample
selected); and

(4) the Transactions had not exceeded the relevant caps as disclosed
in the Prospectus and the Circular respectively.

The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Save as disclosed
above, there were no other transactions which need to be disclosed
as connected transactions in accordance with the requirements of the
Listing Rules and no contracts of significance to which the Company or
any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the 2008
Financial Year or at any time during the 2008 Financial Year.

Remuneration Policy

The remuneration of the Directors are decided by the Remuneration
Committee based on the relevant Director’s experience, responsibility and the
time devoted to the business of the Group.

Use of Proceeds
The shares of the Company were listed on the Stock Exchange on 18 May
2007 and raised net proceeds of approximately HK$1,796 million.

During the 2008 Financial Year, approximately HK$762 million and HK$431
million were used from the net proceeds to repay a syndicated loan and other
bank loans and for the capital expenditures respectively. The balance of the
net proceeds has been deposited into interest-bearing bank accounts with
licensed commercial banks in Hong Kong.
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Tax Relief and Exemption
The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to the
shareholders of the Company by reason of their holding of the Shares.

Audit Committee

An audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) was established by the Board
on 27 April 2007 with written terms of reference in compliance with the CG
Code contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The Audit Committee
comprises three INED, namely Mr. Sze Kwok Wing, Nigel, Mr. Ng Ching
Wah and Mr. Chan Yue Kwong, Michael. Mr. Sze Kwok Wing, Nigel is the
chairman of the Audit Committee.

Corporate Governance

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company since the
Listing are set out in the Corporate Governance Report from page 38 to page
46 of this annual report.

Sufficiency of Public Float

According to the information publicly available to the Company and to the
best knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained a sufficient
public float as required by the Listing Rules as at the latest practicable date
prior to the issue of this annual report.

Subsequent Events
The Group had no significant events after the balance sheet date.

Auditor

The financial statements for 2008 Financial Year have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers. A resolution to re-appoint PricewaterhouseCoopers
as auditor of the Company will be proposed for approval by shareholders of
the Company at the forthcoming AGM of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Wan Wai Loi
CHAIRMAN

Hong Kong, 11 July 2008
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Corporate Governance Practices

The Board recognises the importance of corporate governance practice to
the success of a listed company. The Company is committed to achieving
high standard of corporate governance in the interest of the shareholders of
the Company.

The Company complied with the code provisions set out in the CG Code
contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules throughout the accounting
period covered by the annual report. In addition to the CG Code, the Board
also observed certain recommended best practices (“Recommended Best
Practices”) contained in the Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules where suitable
to the Company so as to enhance the corporate governance standard of the
Company.

The Company will ensure the high level of corporate governance practices to
be maintained in future.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding securities transactions
by the Directors. Based on specific enquiries made by the Company, all
Directors confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code for the year
ended 31 March 2008.

Directors

The Board

The Board currently has 11 members (excluding alternate Director) consisting
of 4 executive Directors and 7 non-executive Directors of which 3 are INED.

The overall management of the business of the Group is vested to the Board.
The Board is responsible for setting strategic, management and financial
objectives and ensuring that the interest of shareholders including those
minority shareholders are protected. Daily operations and administration of
the Group are delegated to the executive Directors and the management.

The Board meets regularly and additional meetings are convened when
deemed necessary by the Board. Regular Board meetings are scheduled at
least 4 times per year. The schedule of regular meetings for the whole year
has been informed to each Director. Notices of meeting will be provided to
the Directors at least 14 days before the meeting. Notices and agenda of the
Board meeting are prepared by the Company Secretary as delegated by the
Chairman. All the Directors are given the opportunity to include matters in the
agenda for the Board meetings.

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited
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Directors (Continued)

The Board (Continued)

Agenda and accompanying board papers with adequate background
information and supporting analysis are sent to the Directors at least 3 days
before the intended date of the Board meeting. All the Directors are given
separate and independent access to the Company’s senior management
for further information and enquiries. The Company Secretary and senior
management attend all the meetings of the Board and Board Committees to
advise on corporate governance, statutory compliance and financial matters.

During the 2008 Financial Year, the Board held 7 meetings to approve
interim and final results announcements, interim reports and annual reports,
to consider dividend policy and to discuss significant issues and the general
operation of the Company. The attendance of the Directors is set out in the
table on page 43 of this annual report.

Any material matters that would have conflict of interest between the
Directors/substantial shareholders and the Company will be dealt with in the
Board meetings. Pursuant to the Articles, a Director is not entitled to vote on
(nor is counted in the quorum) any resolution of the Board in respect of any
contract or arrangement or any other proposal whatsoever in which he or
any of his associates (including any person who would be deemed to be an
“associate” of the Directors under the Listing Rules) has any material interest,
except in certain special circumstances. The chairman of the Board meeting
is required to ensure that each Director is aware of such requirement at the
commencement of each Board meeting and declaration of interest is properly
made in the Board meeting where conflicts of interest arise.

Directors have access to the advices and services of the Company Secretary
and key officers of the Company in relation to the Board procedures. Draft
minutes of Board/Board Committee meetings recorded in sufficient detail
the matters considered by the participants of such meetings and decisions
reached are forwarded to the participants for comments within a reasonable
time after the meetings and final versions of minutes of Board meetings and
meetings of Board Committee are kept by the Company Secretary, which are
open for inspection by Directors at any reasonable time on reasonable notice.

Board members are provided with complete, adequate and timely information
to allow the Directors to fulfill their duties properly. Directors may seek
independent professional advice at the Company’s expense, if necessary,
with the approval of the Board.

As permitted under the Articles, the Company has arranged Directors and
Officers Liability Insurance against possibility of legal proceedings against
Directors and management.
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Directors (Continued)

The Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The Board is headed by the Chairman Mr. Wan Wai Loi, with the assistance
of the Vice Chairman, Mr. Tsang Kang Po. The roles of the Chairman and the
Chief Executive Officer, Mr. Lam Wing Tak are segregated and not exercised
by the same individual.

The Chairman is responsible for the leadership and effective running of the
Board and ensuring that all material issues are discussed by the Board in a
timely and constructive manner. The Chief Executive Officer is responsible
for the management of the Group’s business and the implementation of the
approved strategies of the Group. In addition, each executive Director is
responsible for the management of the different functions of the business of
the Group.

With the support of the Company Secretary, the Chairman ensures all the
Directors are properly briefed on issues arising at Board meetings and be
provided with adequate information in a timely manner.

Board Composition
The composition of the Board’s members is as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. WAN Wai Loi (Chairman)

Mr. TSANG Kang Po (Vice Chairman)

Mr. LAM Wing Tak (Chief Executive Officer)
Dr. LAM King Man

Non-executive Directors

Mr. CHOI Kin Chung (Emeritus Chairman)

Mr. IP Ping Im (Senior Partner)

Mr. HO Hsiang Ming, James

Mr. LAU Yiu Tong

Mr. Vivek KALRA (appointed on 19 May 2008)
(Alternate Director to Mr. Ho Hsiang Ming, James)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. CHAN Yue Kwong, Michael

Mr. NG Ching Wah

Mr. SZE Kwok Wing, Nigel

Profile of the Directors is set out on pages 11 to 13 of this annual report and is
updated on the website of the Company.

During the 2008 Financial Year, the Board at all times met the requirements
of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least 3 INED with at least
one independent non-executive Director possessing appropriate professional
qualifications, or accounting or related financial management expertise.
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Directors (Continued)

Board Composition (Continued)

The appointment of INED strictly adheres to the guidelines for assessing
independence set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company has
received in writing confirmation of their independence from each of the
INED and considers them to be independent of the management and free
of any relationship that could materially interfere with the exercise of their
independent judgment. The Board considers that each of the non-executive
Directors and INED brings his/her own relevant expertise to the Board.

The Board comprises Directors who collectively provide core competencies,
sales and marketing experience and technical knowledge in fabric business,
administration and management experience in the PRC factories, financial
and accounting skill. The current Board size of 11 Directors with a balance of
skills and experience is appropriate for effective decision making, taking into
account the nature and scope of the operations of the Group.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

The Board is empowered under the Articles to appoint any person as a
Director to fill a casual vacancy on or as an additional member of the Board.
Suitable candidates who are experienced and competent and able to fulfill the
fiduciary duties and duties of skill, care and diligence would be recommended
to the Board.

Each of the non-executive Directors (including the INED) was appointed for
a specific term of 2 years but are subject to retirement by rotation and are
eligible for re-election pursuant to the Articles.

Pursuant to the Articles, any Director appointed by the Board either to fill a
casual vacancy or as addition to the Board shall retire and be eligible for re-
appointment at the next following general meeting after appointment. The
appointment of Directors is fixed for a specified term, but at every AGM one-
third of the Directors, including the Chairman, shall be subject to retirement
by rotation and reelection by shareholders. The Directors appointed by the
Board who are subject to retirement and re-election as mentioned above
shall be taken into account in calculating the total number of Directors for the
time being but shall not be taken into account in calculating the number of
Directors who are to retire by rotation. All Directors eligible for re-election shall
have their biographical details made available to the shareholders to enable
them to make an informed decision on their re-election. Any appointment,
resignation, removal or re-designation of Director shall be timely disclosed to
the shareholders by announcement and shall include in such announcement,
the reasons given by the Director for his resignation.
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Directors (Continued)

Responsibilities of Directors

The Company and the Board require each Director to keep abreast of
his responsibilities as a Director of the Company and of the business and
operating activities and development of the Company. Every Director is
required to devote sufficient time and involvement in the affairs of the Board
and the material matters of the Company and to serve the Board with such
degree of care and due diligence given his own expertise, qualification and
professionalism.

Prior to the Listing, Directors have attended trainings provided by the legal
advisers of the Company in relation to his responsibilities under statute and
common law, the Listing Rules, applicable legal requirements and other
regulatory requirements. Every newly appointed Director has been provided
with comprehensive and tailored induction of business operation of the
Group, including a site visit of our factory in China on the first occasion of
his appointment. A comprehensive Compliance Manual has been provided
to each Director and has been updated. All Directors have been updated
and briefed the relevant changes in legal and regulatory matters to ensure
that they have a proper understanding of the operations and the business of
the Company and that they are fully aware of their responsibilities under the
applicable laws and regulations.

The non-executive Directors attended the Board meetings and advised their
opinion on the business strategy of the Company and reviewed the financial
and operation performance of the Group.

INED are members of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee
and the Nomination Committee.

Management Function

The Articles set out matters which are specifically reserved to the Board
for its decision. Executive Directors normally meet on an informal basis and
participate in senior management meetings on a regular basis to keep abreast
of the latest operations and performance of the Group and to monitor and
ensure the management carries out the directions and strategies set by the
Board correctly and appropriately.
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Directors (Continued)

Attendance Record at Meetings

The attendance of the individual Director at the meetings of the Board, the
Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee
during the 2008 Financial Year is set out in the following table:

Board
EER
Executive Directors PITEE
Mr. Wan Wai Loi FEREE 7/7
Mr. Tsang Kang Po BRI A 6/7
Mr. Lam Wing Tak MRERfR S A 7/7
Dr. Lam King Man MEXELT 6/7
Non-executive Directors FHHTESE
Mr. Choi King Chung ks 3/7
Mr. Ip Ping Im Bk E 6/7
Mr. Ho Hsiang Ming, James ERREE 4/7
Mr. Lau Yiu Tong BRI E 5/7
Independent Non-executive Directors B v 3£ 1TEFE
Mr. Chan Yue Kwong, Michael BRI S 7/7
Mr. Ng Ching Wah MFERE 77
Mr. Sze Kwok Wing, Nigel HEEREE 5 A 6/7

Board Committees

BEm)
SR HERE
TRETRNR2008FFRFEESHFEESR &

ZEBEg  FTHEEGRREEEESYRI LR
FO8%
No. of meetings attended/No. of meetings held
HESENEHERE
Audit Remuneration Nomination
Committee Committee Committee
EREEE FTNEEE REZES
N/A N/A N/A
N/A 2/2 11
N/A 2/2 11
N/A N/A N/A
N/A N/A N/A
N/A N/A N/A
N/A N/A N/A
N/A N/A N/A
6/6 2/2 11
6/6 2/2 11
6/6 2/2 11
EEREEE

The Board has set up 3 main Board Committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee,
each chaired by different INED, to assist the Board for overseeing particular
aspects of the Company’s affairs. The terms of reference setting out the
principles, procedures and arrangements of the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee are available on the
website of the Company.

The Board Committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge
their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s
expenses.

Board committees report to the Board of their decisions and
recommendations at the Board meetings.
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Board Committees (Continued)

Audit Committee

An audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) was established by the Board
on 27 April 2007 with written terms of reference in compliance with the CG
Code.

The members of the audit committee are Mr. Sze Kwok Wing, Nigel; Mr.
Ng Ching Wah and Mr. Chan Yue Kwong, Michael (who are INED). Mr. Sze
Kwok Wing, Nigel, a Fellow of CPA Australia, is the chairman of the audit
committee.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review and to approve the
Group’s financial reporting process and internal control system.

The Audit Committee held 6 meetings during 2008 Financial Year. The major
work performed by the Audit Committee in respect of 2008 Financial Year
included approving the terms of engagements (including the remuneration) of
the external auditor, reviewing the unaudited interim report and interim results
announcement for the six months ended 30 September 2007, reviewing
the audited accounts and final results announcement for the year ended 31
March 2008, reviewing the work of the Group’s internal audit department
and assessing the effectiveness of the Group’s systems of risk management
and internal control. The attendance of the Directors for the Audit Committee
meetings is set out in the table on page 43 of this annual report.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the scope and results of the audit and its
cost effectiveness and the independence and objectivity of the Company’s
auditor. For 2008 Financial Year, the fees in respect of audit and non-audit
services provided by the Company’s auditor were as follows:

Audit Services EZR
Non-audit Services LR
— Tax consultation services and — S EA RS AR 7 EL 2R B
review interim financial information R EBE S E KL

é%ﬁié

ENEE
BEERN2007F4A2TBRIBREES -
AEETATICHERBESRE -

W

BERZBEG KB REEKEL MBERER
BRERXEE(RERBULIFATES) » BEIRSE
EoENEMEAMASEREE - REKEE
ES

BERZEG IERERABH R EREE ZE
TEIERAZ A B AR BE I I E o

R2008F I EFE EHEZEERITTORE
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FIABALEFEZKEZVBERRREFER
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@ ARARBZBENBLEMERE - 5L
2008 I AFE » AR B BRAD M AN SR B IR (1 Y
ERSFERRGZBERET

The Audit Committee has undertaken a review of all the non-audit services
provided by the Company’s auditor and concluded that in their opinion such
services did not affect the independence of the auditor.

The Audit Committee recommended to the Board to re-appoint
PricewaterhouseCoopers as the Company’s external auditor for the ensuing
year and the related resolutions shall be put forth in the coming AGM.

The Audit Committee has met with external auditor without the presence of
management to discuss matters arising from the audit and any matters may
be raised by auditor.

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management in conjunction with
the auditor, the audited annual financial statements of the Group for the 2008
Financial Year and the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group. The Annual Report for 2008 Financial Year has been reviewed by the
Audit Committee.
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Board Committees (continued)

Remuneration Committee

A remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) was established
by our Board on 27 April 2007 with written terms of reference in compliance
with the CG Code.

The members of the remuneration committee are Mr. Chan Yue Kwong,
Michael; Mr. Sze Kwok Wing, Nigel and Mr. Ng Ching Wah (who are
INED) and Mr. Lam Wing Tak and Mr. Tsang Kang Po (who are executive
Directors). Mr. Chan Yue Kwong, Michael is the chairman of the remuneration
committee.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to review and
determine the terms of remuneration packages, bonuses and other
compensation payable to Directors and senior management of the Group
with reference to the nature of their work, complexity of the responsibilities
and performance. No Director is allowed to take part in any discussion about
his own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee met twice during the 2008 Financial Year.
The major work performed by the Remuneration Committee for the 2008
Financial Year included reviewing the terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee and the remuneration of the Directors with reference to the
remuneration level of directors of comparable listed companies. The
attendance of the Directors for the Remuneration Committee meetings is set
out in the table on page 43 of this annual report.

Particulars of the Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to Section 161
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Appendix 16 of the Listing
Rules are set out in note 25 to the financial statement on page 107 and page
108 of this annual report. The Directors’ fee shall be subject to shareholders’
approval at general meetings. Other emoluments shall from time to time
be determined by the Board with reference to the Directors’ duties and
responsibilities and subject to a review by the Remuneration Committee.

Nomination Committee
The Board has set up a nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”)
on 27 April 2007 with written terms of reference in compliance with the
Recommended Best Practice.

The members of the Nomination Committee are Mr. Ng Ching Wah; Mr.
Chan Yue Kwong, Michael; Mr. Sze Kwok Wing, Nigel (who are INED); Mr.
Lam Wing Tak and Mr. Tsang Kang Po (who are executive Directors). Mr. Ng
Ching Wah is the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment of Directors and the
management of the Board succession.

The Nomination Committee met once during the 2008 Financial Year. The
major work performed by the Nomination Committee in respect of the 2008
Financial Year included assessing the independence of the INED and make
recommendation on the re-election of Mr. Wan Wai Loi, Mr. Tsang Kang Po,
Dr. Lam King Man and Mr. Ho Hsiang Ming, James as the Directors of the
Company to be proposed for shareholders’ approval at the coming AGM. The
attendance of the Directors for the Nomination Committee meetings is set out
in the table on page 43 of this annual report.
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Accountancy and Audit

Financial reporting

The Directors acknowledged their responsibilities for preparing the
Company’s financial statements for the 2008 Financial Year which give a true
and fair view of the financial position of the Group. The Company deploys
appropriate and sufficient resources to prepare and to publish interim report
and annual report in accordance with statutory requirements and Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards in a timely manner required under the Listing
Rules.

Directors are provided with adequate information to enable them to make an
informed assessment of financial and other information on matters for their
approval.

The statement by the external auditor of the Company regarding their
reporting responsibility to the shareholders on the financial statements is
set out in the Independent Auditor’'s Report on page 47 and page 48 of this
annual report.

Internal controls

The Group has in place the sound and effective internal controls to safeguard
the shareholders’ investment and the assets of the Group. The Company has
from time to time reviewed the effectiveness of the internal control systems in
order to ensure that they meet with the dynamic and ever changing business
environment.

During the 2008 Financial Year, the Board has reviewed the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control systems through the Internal Audit Department
and the Audit Committee with the assistance of an international independent
risk consulting firm.

Communication with Shareholders

Effective Communication

The Board endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue with shareholders
and use general meetings to communicate with shareholders. The Chairman
of the Board and the representative of each Board Committee have attended
the general meeting to answer any questions from shareholders. As a channel
to further promote effective communication, the Group maintains a website
where the Company’s announcements, financial information and other
information are posted.

Separate resolutions are proposed at general meetings on each substantially
separate issue. A shareholder is permitted to appoint any number of proxies
to attend and vote in his stead.

Voting by Poll

The Articles has set out the rights of shareholders and procedures demanding
a poll on resolutions at general meeting, procedures for and shareholders’
right to demand a poll have been specified in corporate communications
to shareholders and explained details of such rights at the commencement
of the general meeting of shareholders by the Chairman. The results of the
poll, if any, are published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.
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PRICENVATERHOUSE(COPERS

BORBKESMERMR

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
PACIFIC TEXTILES HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Pacific Textiles
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”)
set out on pages 49 to 117, which comprise the consolidated and Company
balance sheets as at 31 March 2008, the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow
statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory notes.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial

Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and the true
and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying
appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are
reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
22/F, Prince’s Building
Central, Hong Kong
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Auditor’s responsibility (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 March
2008 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 11 July 2008

48 Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2008

ZEEMNEE )
ERSRAITIRF N ER B S REF#HSE
EHREERHNBELRE - LR MR FIURNE
SREM AN IBF - 0 FE ST R KR 38 SR T Bt
BREFEEAEDRANES - EIEZER
SR BETEREZARERREEHA T
B RAH S B & ABRA R P BBIR A - AR EHEE M
BA2FF - B3R T RSB S MR AL B R
BB - BRNAETEEEMEANETREN
SEMRAE M EHE M AEY - URHE
BTSRRI BB B = -

HFEGE  RPMESHNEBREERTRMNEE
HRRPINE LB LR AL -

=8

BMRAE  ZEREVBHREERIEEBUER
LRAEEMAFRE BRAR BEERN
2008F3A3THMEBMAL BEEEEHZEZA
IFFEENFBERESTE  YEIRBEB(RTIE
PN ER T L BRI -

BORKEBETTENSEAT
HEDE AT
&% > 200857 A11H



Financial Information

MR ER

Consolidated Income Statement For the year ended 31 March 2008
e UNER Bzo008E3A31 A ILEE

2008 2007
20085 20074
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Kia F#ET FAET

Revenue WA 6 4,280,646 4,203,357
Cost of sales SHEEBA (3,583,759) (3,281,266)
Gross profit ER 696,887 922,091
Other revenue E A 23 57,781 52,438
Other gains — net Hablzs—F 23 50,712 11,917
Distribution and selling expenses S REERT (181,020) (130,507)
General and administrative expenses — /e R ITER R (170,901) (169,459)
Operating profit FEg=—beey | 24 453,459 686,480
Finance income BRI 26 44,351 4,548
Finance costs ARG AR AN 26 (33,283) (42,169)
Share of profit/(loss) of associates DIREE N TEN . (E518) 70 886 (1,997)
Profit before income tax FriEFArREA 465,413 646,862
Income tax expense FrfSfif > 27 (68,599) (83,216)
Profit for the year FE=R 396,814 563,646
Attributable to: THIATREL

Equity holders of the Company KABIEZZEA 34 392,093 555,698

Minority interests DR R 4,721 7,948

396,814 563,646

Earnings per share for profit attributable RATERTFAA

to the equity holders of the Company FEEFERT

during the year ZBREF

- basic and diluted (HK$) —HAREE (BT 28 0.28 0.52
Dividends B& B 29 980,610 234,000

The notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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MR ER

Consolidated Balance Sheet As at 31 March 2008

EBEEAMBR nooossEsAs A

2008 2007
20084 20074
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Kia F#&T FAT
ASSETS EE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Leasehold land and land use rights HE L & i fh A 7 28,336 22,050
Property, plant and equipment ME - BE MK 8 1,522,587 1,197,086
Interest in associates N NI 70 15,086 13,070
Deferred taxation IRIERLTR 79 3,467 3,760
Available-for-sale financial assets At ESEE 77 1,808 1,824
1,571,284 1,237,790
Current assets RBEE
Inventories e 72 993,285 953,335
Trade and bills receivables AN E S 73 608,708 579,621
Deposits, prepayments and e BIRE
other receivables e E R GRIE 74 35,390 35,391
Derivative financial instruments PTESmIA 22 18,813 8,618
Cash and bank balances R4 MIRTTHE 75 1,175,481 226,156
2,831,677 1,803,121
Total assets BEEHAHA 4,402,961 3,040,911
EQUITY R
Capital and reserves attributable to RATERFTEA
equity holders of the Company BhERREE
Share capital R AR 76 1,433 11
Reserves i 77 2,838,332 1,440,734
2,839,765 1,440,745
Minority interests DER RS 46,244 50,748
Total equity BT 2,886,009 1,491,493
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MR ER

Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2008

MEEEBBR rnoo0sFE3A31A
2008 2007
20085 20074
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Kia F#ET FHET
LIABILITIES =N
Non-current liabilities FRBERE
Borrowings B’E 78 393,687 415,773
Finance lease obligations B ETHE AR 78 871 814
394,558 416,587
Current liabilities FBARG
Trade and bills payables FERTERR R R 20 611,021 464,574
Accruals and other payables FEZTIE B R E M FE FRIE 27 221,792 140,806
Borrowings =% 78 275,022 513,628
Finance lease obligations AT EAE 78 1,462 3,090
Derivative financial instruments TSI A 22 1,327 234
Current income tax liabilities REFREHAE 11,770 10,499
1,122,394 1,132,831
Total liabilities =Rivak 1,516,952 1,549,418
Total equity and liabilities HERREE 4,402,961 3,040,911
Net current assets REEEFE 1,709,283 670,290
Total assets less current liabilities EEAERRBER 3,280,567 1,908,080

Approved by the Board of Directors on 11 July 2008:

Mr. Wan Wai Loi

The notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

FEREE

Director

EBE

EEPR2008F7 A11BHLER

Mr. Tsang Kang Po
BiRKEE
Director

EBE
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MR ER

Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2008
EEAMBR »nooosE3A31H

2008 2007
20084 20074
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
ot FH&T FHET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets EREBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RHB AT ZIE 9 8 -
Current assets RBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries FE B B A R I 33 1,121,826 234,400
Deposits, prepayments and e BARER
other receivables H{thfE U 08 14 850 914
Cash and bank balances R4 MIRTTH 15 834,253 41
1,956,929 235,355
Total assets EEAE 1,956,937 235,355
EQUITY R
Share capital A& A 16 1,433 11
Reserves & 17 1,882,242 189,147
1,883,675 189,158
LIABILITIES =L
Current liabilities REEE
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERTP B A R IB 33 69,435 46,069
Accruals and other payables FETIE B R E M FE TRIE 21 3,827 128
Total liabilities BERE 73,262 46,197
Total equity and liabilities BEXREE 1,956,937 235,355
Net current assets REBEESE 1,883,667 189,158
Total assets less current liabilities EEABERTBER 1,883,675 189,158

Approved by the Board of Directors on 11 July 2008:

Mr. Wan Wai Loi

The notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity For the year ended 31 March 2008

=N 2

MEEREBR 2000843731 ALEE

Attributable to equity holders Minority
of the Company interests Total
DHRE
KRR EE AR B BB
Share capital Reserves Total
g ks @t
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
st TiEr THL TATL FiEn T
(Note 16) (Note 17)
(Hit16) (Hit17)
Balance at 1 April 2006 1200654818 2 £ith 11 1,044,485 1,044,496 42,800 1,087,296
Profit for the year FRRF - 555,698 555,698 7,048 563,646
Currency translation differences NEBEER - 74,551 74,551 - 74,551
Dividends paid BIRRRE 29 - (234,000) (234,000) - (234,000)
Balance at 31 March 2007 A2007F 3R 310 2k 1 1,440,734 1,440,745 50,748 1,491,493
Profit for the year FEEEF - 392,093 392,093 4,721 396,814
Issuance of share capital by global offering MEHBERABITRA 16 358 1,916,194 1,916,552 - 1,916,552
Global offering expenses SHEET 17 - (120,597) (120,597) - (120,597)
Shares issued by capitalisation from RRHEER
share premium account BRMEETRG 16 1,064 (1,064) - - -
Acquisition of additional interest in m—& L HRREE R
a subsidiary from a minority shareholder WEAAIZ#ER 17 - (3,559) (3,559) (9,225) (12,784)
Currency translation differences IEREER - 81,138 81,138 - 81,138
Share-based compensation expenses L e 16 - 6,533 6,533 - 6,533
Dividends paid BIRRRE 29 - (873,140) (873,140) - (873,140)
Balance at 31 March 2008 A2008F 38310 2t 1,433 2,838,332 2,839,765 46,244 2,886,009

The notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement For the year ended 31 March 2008
FEBEESRER 8Z200853A31 AILFE

2008 2007
20085 20074
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Kia F#&T FAT
Cash flow from operating activities KEXBEHERE
Cash generated from operations REXBELE RS 30(a) 787,206 665,623
Interest paid ERFLE (33,283) (42,169)
Hong Kong profits tax paid B EBFIEH (41,134) (81,296)
Overseas tax paid BN IR (25,901) (27,410)
Net cash generated from operating REEBEEZ
__activities REFE 686,888 514,748
Cash flow from investing activities RETEHZHRERE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment  BEE ¥ - BEKLEE (425,436) (428,157)
Prepayment of leasehold land and METH Rt
land use rights F FARETE A (5,265) -
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEYE - BEKL
plant and equipment BRI 30(b) 14,123 3,077
Additions of available-for-sale financial assets 1Zhir[tHE S MEE 11 - (276)
Disposals of available-for-sale financial assets HERHHE SR EE 11 - 280
Acquisition of additional interest Al — & D BRI R 1 B —
in a subsidiary from a minority shareholder — FfEB A Al Z #Ex 30(c) (12,784) -
Investment in associates REENRZIRE 10 - (4,524)
Interest income received B S A 44,351 4,548
Dividend income A% Bl s 9 8
Net cash used in investing activities RETHBAZRLSFHE (385,002) (425,044)
Net cash inflow before financing activities @& EBAIREMAFE 301,886 . 89,704
Cash flow from financing activities REERBHCRERE
Proceeds from issuance of shares BT FT1S5KIA
(net of share issue expenses) (FOB TR X ) 1,795,955 -
Advance from a minority shareholder —Z VBRI B 28,786 18,947
New borrowings EEE 945,234 547,548
Repayment of borrowings EEER (1,223,713) (356,938)
Repayment of capital element of finance EEREHEREZ
lease obligations BARE D (3,611) 877)
Dividends paid BERE (873,140) (234,000)
Net cash generated from/(used in) BEEBE(BA) 2
__financing activities REFE 669,511 (25,320)
Net increase in cash and ReERRESEEER
cash equivalents HNFEEE 971,397 64,384
Cash and cash equivalents M4R1EBESRRESEEER
at 1 April 186,445 93,611
Foreign exchange adjustment IEE IR B TR (11,073) 28,450
Cash and cash equivalents A3A3IERERRELEER
at 31 March 1,146,769 186,445
Analysis of cash and cash equivalents H4&RESZEER D
Cash and bank balances Re NIRTTEHS 15(a) 1,175,481 226,156
Bank overdrafts RITEX 18(a) (28,712) (39,711)
1,146,769 186,445

BIRE VAR B MRS RER 2 BB 1D ©

The notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

|

General information

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) are principally engaged in the manufacture and
trading of textile products. Its production bases are primarily located in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) and Sri Lanka.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands. The address of its registered office is P.O. Box 309GT, Ugland
House, South Church Street, George Town, Grand Cayman, Cayman
Islands.

The Company’s shares were listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 18 May 2007.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands
of units of HK dollars (HK$’000), unless otherwise stated. These
consolidated financial statements have been approved for issue by the
Board of Directors on 11 July 2008.

Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements of the Company have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRS”). The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, except as disclosed in the principal
accounting policies below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the financial statements, are disclosed in Note 5.

(@) Standard, amendment and interpretation to existing standards
that have become effective in 2007/08 and are relevant to the
Group’s operations
The following standard, amendment and interpretation to existing
standards are mandatory for accounting periods beginning on or
after 1 April 2007 and are relevant to the Group’s operations:

. HKFRS 7 “Financial Instruments: Disclosures”, and the
complementary amendment to HKAS 1 “Presentation of
Financial Statements — Capital Disclosures” introduces new
disclosures relating to financial instruments and do not have
any significant impact on the classification and valuation of
the Group’s financial instruments; and

. HK(IFRIC)-Int 11 “HKFRS 2 — Group and Treasury Share
Transactions” provides guidance on whether share-based
transactions involving treasury shares or involving group
entities (for example, options over a parent’s shares) should
be accounted for as equity-settled or cash settled share-
based payment transactions in the stand-alone accounts of
the parent and group companies.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued) MR R @)
2 Basis of preparation (Continued) 2 mREEEGE)
(b) Interpretations to existing standards that have become (b) 7R2007/2008 F £ MBEAREEEER

effective in 2007/08 but not relevant to the Group’s operations
The following interpretations to existing standards have been
published that are mandatory for accounting periods beginning on
or after 1 April 2007 but are not relevant to the Group’s operations:

o HK(IFRIC)-Int 7 — “Applying the Restatement Approach
under HKAS 29, Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary
Economies”;

. HK(IFRIC)-Int 8 “Scope of HKFRS 27;

. HK(IFRIC)-Int 9 “Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives”;
and

o HK(IFRIC)-Int 10 “Interim Financial Reporting and
Impairment”.

Standards and amendments to existing standards that are not
yet effective and have not been early adopted by the Group
The following standards and amendments to existing standards
have been published and are mandatory for the Group’s
accounting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2008 or later
periods, but the Group has not early adopted them:

. HKAS 1 (Revised) “Presentation of Financial Statements”
(effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1
January 2009). HKAS 1 (Revised) requires all owner changes
in equity to be presented in a statement of changes in equity.
All comprehensive income is presented in one statement
of comprehensive income or in two statements (a separate
income statement and a statement of comprehensive
income). It requires presenting a statement of financial
position as at the beginning of the earliest comparative
period in a complete set of financial statements when there
are retrospective adjustments or reclassification adjustments.
However, it does not change the recognition, measurement
or disclosure of specific transactions and other events
required by other HKFRSs. The Group will apply HKAS 1
(Revised) from 1 April 2009;
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

2 Basis of preparation (Continued)
(c) Standards and amendments to existing standards that are not
yet effective and have not been early adopted by the Group
(Continued)

HKAS 23 (Amendment) “Borrowing Costs” (effective for
accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009).
The amendment requires an entity to capitalise borrowing
costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of a qualifying asset (one that takes a substantial
period of time to get ready for use or sale) as part of the cost
of that asset. The option of immediately expensing those
borrowing costs will be removed. The Group will apply HKAS
23 (Amendment) from 1 April 2009;

HKAS 27 (Revised) “Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements” (effective for accounting periods beginning
on or after 1 July 2009). HKAS 27 (Revised) requires non-
controlling interests (i.e. minority interests) to be presented
in the consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from the equity of the owners of the
parent. Total comprehensive income must be attributed to
the owners of the parent and to the non-controlling interests
even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance. Changes in a parent’s ownership interest
in a subsidiary that do not result in the loss of control are
accounted for within equity. When control of a subsidiary is
lost, the assets and liabilities and related equity components
of the former subsidiary are derecognised. Any gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss. Any investment retained in the
former subsidiary is measured at its fair value at the date
when control is lost. The Group will apply HKAS 27 (Revised)
from 1 April 2010;

HKFRS 2 (Amendment) “Share-based Payment Vesting
Conditions and Cancellations” (effective for accounting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009). HKFRS 2
(Amendment) clarifies the definition of “vesting conditions”
and specifies the accounting treatment of “cancellations” by
the counterparty to a share-based payment arrangement.
Vesting conditions are service conditions (which require a
counterparty to complete a specified period of service) and
performance conditions (which require a specified period
of service and specified performance targets to be met)
only. All “non-vesting conditions” and vesting conditions
that are market conditions shall be taken into account when
estimating the fair value of the equity instruments granted. Al
cancellations are accounted for as an acceleration of vesting
and the amount that would otherwise have been recognised
over the remainder of the vesting period is recognised
immediately. The Group will apply HKFRS 2 (Amendment)
from 1 April 2009;
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Basis of preparation (Continued)

(c) Standards and amendments to existing standards that are not
yet effective and have not been early adopted by the Group
(Continued)

HKFRS 3 (Revised) “Business Combination” (effective for
business combinations with acquisition date on or after the
beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning on
or after 1 July 2009). HKFRS 3 (Revised) may bring more
transactions into acquisition accounting as combinations
by contract alone and combinations of mutual entities are
brought into the scope of the standard and the definition of
a business has been amended slightly. It now states that
the elements are ‘capable of being conducted’ rather than
‘are conducted and managed’. It requires considerations
(including contingent consideration), each identifiable asset
and liability to be measured at its acquisition-date fair
value, except leases and insurance contracts, reacquired
right, indemnification assets as well as some assets and
liabilities required to be measured in accordance with other
HKFRSs. They are income taxes, employee benefits, share-
based payment and non current assets held for sale and
discontinued operations. Any non-controlling interest in
an acquiree is measured either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interest’s proportionate share of the acquiree’s
net identifiable assets. The Group will apply HKFRS 3 (Revised)
from 1 April 2010; and

HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments” (effective for accounting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009). HKFRS
8 supersedes HKAS 14 “Segment Reporting”. The new
standard uses a “management approach”, under which
segment information is presented on the same basis as that
used for internal reporting purposes. The Group will apply
HKFRS 8 from 1 April 2009.

The Group has commenced, but not yet completed, an assessment
of the impact of the standards and amendments to existing
standards on its results of operations and financial position. The
directors are of the view that the impact on the consolidated
financial statements will not be significant.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

2 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(d)

Interpretations to existing standards that are not yet effective
and not relevant to the Group’s operations

The following interpretations to existing standards have been
published and are mandatory for the Group’s accounting periods
beginning on or after 1 April 2008 or later periods but are not
relevant to the Group’s operations:

. HK(IFRIC)-Int 12 “Service Concession Arrangements”
(effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1
January 2008);

. HK(IFRIC)-Int 13 “Customer loyalty programmes” (effective for
accounting periods beginning on or after 1 July 2008); and

. HK(IFRIC)-Int 14 “HKAS 19 — The limit on a defined benefit
asset, minimum funding requirements and their interaction”
(effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1
January 2008).

3 Principal accounting policies

3.1

Consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and all of its subsidiaries made up to
31 March.

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose entities)
over which the Group has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies generally accompanying a shareholding of more
than one half of the voting rights. The existence and effect of
potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible
are considered when assessing whether the Group controls
another entity.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the date
that control ceases.

The purchase method of accounting is used to account for the
acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group. The cost of an acquisition is
measured as the fair value of the assets given, equity instruments
issued and liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of exchange,
plus costs directly attributable to the acquisition. Identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed
in a business combination are measured initially at their fair values
at the acquisition date, irrespective of the extent of any minority
interest. The excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair value
of the Group’s share of the identifiable net assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill. If the cost of acquisition is less than the fair
value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is
recognised directly in the income statement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

3

Principal accounting policies (Continued)

3.1

3.2

3.3

Consolidated financial statements (Continued)

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

In the Company’s balance sheet the investments in subsidiaries
are stated at cost less provision for impairment losses. The results
of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.

Transactions with minority interests

The Group applies a policy of treating transactions with minority
interests as transactions with equity owners of the Group. For
purchases from minority interests, the difference between any
consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying
value of net assets of the subsidiary is deducted from equity. Gains
or losses on disposals to minority interests are also recorded in
equity. For disposals to minority interests, differences between any
proceeds received and the relevant share of minority interests are
also recorded in equity.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant
influence but not control, generally accompanying a shareholding
of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments
in associates are accounted for using the equity method of
accounting and are initially recognised at cost. The Group’s
investment in associates includes goodwill (net of any accumulated
impairment loss) identified on acquisition.

The Group’s share of its associates’ post-acquisition profits or
losses is recognised in the income statement, and its share of
post-acquisition movements in reserves is recognised in reserves.
The cumulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted against
the carrying amount of the investment. When the Group’s share of
losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate,
including any other unsecured receivables, the Group does not
recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its
associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest
in the associates. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of the associates have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.
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3

Principal accounting policies (Continued)

3.3 Associates (Continued)

In the Company’s balance sheet the investments in associates
are stated at cost less provision for impairment losses. The results
of associates are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.

3.4

3.5

Segment reporting

A business segment is a group of assets and operations engaged
in providing products or services that are subject to risks and
returns that are different from those of other business segments. A
geographical segment is engaged in providing products or services
within a particular economic environment that are subject to risks
and returns that are different from those of segments operating in
other economic environments.

Foreign currency translation

@)

(®)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong Dollar (“HK$”), which
is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in the income statement.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities denominated
in foreign currency classified as available-for-sale are
analysed between translation differences resulting from
changes in the amortised cost of the security and other
changes in the carrying amount of the security. Translation
differences related to changes in the amortised cost are
recognised in income statement and other changes in the
carrying amount are recognised in equity.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets and
liabilities are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets
and liabilities such as equities held at fair value through profit
or loss are recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair
value gain or loss. Translation differences on non-monetary
financial assets such as equities classified as available-for-
sale are included in the available-for-sale reserve in equity.
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Principal accounting policies (Continued)
3.5 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

()

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group’s entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the presentation
currency as follows:

(i)  assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented
are translated at the closing rate at the date of that
balance sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each income statement
are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation of
the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case income and expenses
are translated at the dates of the transactions); and

(i) all resulting exchange differences are recognised as a
separate component of equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from
the translation of the net investment in foreign entities
or operations, and of borrowings and other currency
instruments designated as hedges of such investments, are
taken to shareholders’ equity. When a foreign operation is
partially disposed of or sold, exchange differences that were
recorded in equity are recognised in the income statement as
part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition
of a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign entity and translated at the closing rate.

3.6 Leasehold land and land use rights
The up-front prepayments made for leasehold land and land use
rights are accounted for as operating leases. They are expensed in
the income statement on a straight-line basis over the periods of
the lease or the land use rights, or when there is impairment, the
impairment is expensed in the income statement.
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Principal accounting policies (Continued)
3.7 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment other than construction in progress
are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are expensed in the
income statement during the period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment other than
construction in progress are calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate their costs to their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, as follows:

Buildings 2% - 4%
Leasehold improvements 20%

Plant and machinery 10% - 20%
Furniture and equipment 12.5% - 25%
Motor vehicles and vessel 20% —25%

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date. An asset’s
carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount.

Construction in progress represents buildings or leasehold
improvements on which construction work has not been
completed. It is carried at cost which includes construction
expenditures and other direct costs less any impairment losses.
On completion, construction in progress is transferred to the
appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment at cost
less accumulated impairment losses. No depreciation is provided
for construction in progress until they are completed and available
for use.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
proceeds with carrying amount and are charged to the income
statement.
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Principal accounting policies (Continued)

3.8

3.9

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries, associates and
non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or have not yet been
available for use are not subject to amortisation and are tested
annually for impairment. Assets are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use.
For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at
the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets as available-for-sale or
loans and receivables. The classification depends on the purpose
for which the financial assets were acquired. Management
determines the classification of its financial assets at initial
recognition.

() Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial
assets that are either designated in this category or not
classified in any of the other categories. They are included in
non-current assets unless management intends to dispose of
the investment within 12 months of the balance sheet date.

(i) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payment that are not quoted in an
active market. They are included in current assets, except
for maturities greater than 12 months after the balance sheet
date. These are classified as non-current assets. Loans and
receivables are classified as trade and other receivables in
the balance sheet.

Purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the
trade-date — the date on which the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at fair value
through profit or loss. Financial assets are derecognised when the
rights to receive cash flows from the investments have expired or
have been transferred and the Group has transferred substantially
all risks and rewards of ownership. Available-for-sale financial assets
are subsequently carried at fair value. Changes in the fair value of
financial assets classified as available-for-sale are recognised in
equity. Loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.
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3

Principal accounting policies (Continued)

3.9

3.10

3.1

Financial assets (Continued)

When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold or
impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments recognised in
equity are included in the income statement as gains and losses
from investment securities. The fair values of quoted investments
are based on current bid prices.

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there
is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired. In the case of equity securities classified as
available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of the security below its cost is considered as an indicator
that the securities are impaired. If any such evidence exists for
available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss — measured
as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current
fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset
previously recognised in profit or loss — is removed from equity and
recognised in the income statement. Impairment losses recognised
in the income statement on equity instruments are not reversed
through the income statement.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined using the weighted average method. The cost
of finished goods and work in progress comprises raw materials,
direct labour, other direct costs and related production overheads
(based on normal operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less applicable variable selling expenses.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less provision for impairment. A provision for
impairment of trade and other receivables is established when
there is objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect
all amounts due according to the original terms of receivables.
Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the
debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and default
or delinquency in payments are considered as indicators that the
trade receivable is impaired. The amount of the provision is the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original
effective interest rate. The amount of the provision or subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are recognised in the
income statement within distribution and selling expenses in the
income statement.
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3

Principal accounting policies (Continued)

3.12

3.13

3.14

3.156

3.16

3.17

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at
call with banks, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown
within borrowings in current liabilities on the balance sheet.

Forward foreign exchange contracts

Derivatives are classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as hedges. Assets or liabilities in this category are
classified as current assets or current liabilities if they are either
held for trading or are expected to be realised within 12 months of
the balance sheet date.

Forward foreign exchange contracts are classified as held for
trading.

Forward foreign exchange contracts are initially recognised at fair
value on the date a contract is entered into and are subsequently
re-measured at their fair value. Changes in fair value are
recognised immediately in the income statement.

Share capital
Shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares
or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised
cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the income
statement over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has
an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least
12 months after the balance sheet date.

Current and deferred income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the
tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date in the countries where the Company and its subsidiaries and
associates operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect
to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate on the
basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
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3

Principal accounting policies (Continued)
3.17 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method,
on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. However, the deferred income tax is not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at
the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates
(and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the
balance sheet date and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax
liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising
on investments in subsidiaries and associates, except where the
timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by
the Group and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

3.18 Employee benefits

() Employee leave entitlement
Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service leave
are recognised when they accrue to employees. A provision
is made for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result
of services rendered by employees up to the balance sheet
date. Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave
are not recognised until the time of leave.

(i) Retirement benefits

Group companies participate in various defined contribution
retirement benefit schemes. A defined contribution plan is a
retirement benefit scheme under which the Group pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity. The Group has no legal
or constructive obligations to pay further contributions if the
fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the
benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior
periods.

The schemes are generally funded through payments to
insurance companies or state/trustee-administered funds.
The Group pays contributions on a mandatory, contractual
or voluntary basis. The Group has no further payment
obligations once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as employment costs when they
are due.
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Principal accounting policies (Continued)

3.18

3.19

Employee benefits (Continued)

(i) Share-based compensation
The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan. The fair value of the employee services
received in exchange for the grant of the options is
recognised as an expense. The total amount to be expensed
over the vesting period is determined by reference to the
fair value of the options granted, excluding the impact of
any non-market vesting conditions (for example, profitability
and sales growth targets). Non-market vesting conditions
are included in assumptions about the number of options
that are expected to vest. At each balance sheet date, the
entity revises its estimates of the number of options that are
expected to vest. It recognises the impact of the revision
of original estimates, if any, in the income statement with a
corresponding adjustment to equity.

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital (nominal value)
and share premium when the options are exercised.

(iv)  Bonus plans
The Group recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses.
It recognises a provision where contractually obliged or
where there is a past practice that has created a constructive
obligation.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation;
and the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not
recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any
one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase
in the provision due to passage of time is recognised as interest
expense.
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Principal accounting policies (Continued)
3.20 Revenue recognition

3.21

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable for the sale of goods and services in the ordinary course
of the Group’s activities. Revenue is shown, net of value-added
tax, returns, rebates and discounts and after eliminating sales
within the Group.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can
be reliably measured, it is probable that future economic benefits
will flow to the entity and specific criteria have been met for each of
the Group’s activities as described below. The amount of revenue
is not considered to be reliably measurable until all contingencies
relating to the sale have been resolved. The Group bases its
estimates on historical results, taking into consideration the type
of customer, the type of transaction and the specifics of each
arrangement.

(@) Sales of goods
Sales of goods are recognised when a Group entity has
delivered products to the customer; the customer has
accepted the products and collectibility of the related
receivables is reasonably assured.

Advance payments received from customers prior to delivery
of goods and provision of services are recorded as receipts
in advance.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using
the effective interest method.

(b)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred for the construction of any qualifying
asset are capitalised during the period of time that is required
to complete and prepare the assets for its intended use. Other
borrowing costs are expensed.

3.22 Leases (as the lessee)

(@) Operating leases
Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards
of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net
of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the
income statement on a straight-line basis over the period of
the lease.
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Principal accounting policies (Continued)

3.22

3.23

3.24

Leases (as the lessee) (Continued)

(b)  Finance leases
The Group leases certain property, plant and equipment.
Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Group
has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised
at the lease’s commencement at the lower of the fair value
of the leased assets and the present value of the minimum
lease payments.

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and
finance charges so as to achieve a constant rate on the
finance balance outstanding. The corresponding rental
obligations, net of finance charges, are included in current
and non-current borrowings. The interest element of the
finance cost is charged to the income statement over the
lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each
period. The property, plant and equipment acquired under
finance leases is depreciated over the shorter of the useful life
of the asset and the lease term.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Group. It can also be a
present obligation arising from past events that is not recognised
because it is not probable that outflow of economic resources
will be required or the amount of obligation cannot be measured
reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the
financial statements. When a change in the probability of
an outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it will then be
recognised as a provision.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised
as a liability in the Group’s financial statements in the period in
which the dividends are approved by the Company’s shareholders
or directors, where appropriate.
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3 Principal accounting policies (Continued)
3.25 Financial guarantees

A financial guarantee (a kind of insurance contract) is a contract
that requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse
the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails
to make payments when due in accordance with the original
or modified terms of a debt instrument. The Group does not
recognise liabilities for financial guarantees at inception, but
perform a liability adequacy test at each reporting date by
comparing its net liability regarding the financial guarantee with
the amount that would be required if the financial guarantee would
result in a present legal or constructive obligation. If the liability
is less than its present legal or constructive obligation amount,
the entire difference is recognised in the income statement
immediately.

4  Financial risk management

41

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (including commaodities price risk, foreign exchange
risk, and cash flow and fair value interest rate risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks
to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance. Because of the simplicity of the financial structure
and current operations of the Group, no major hedging activities
other than the use of external forward currency contracts are
undertaken by management.

(@  Market risk
()  Commodities price risk
Majority of the raw materials used by the Group are
yarn, dye and other chemical and are subject to
market price risk. The Group has not used any hedging
activities to hedge its exposure to commaodities price
risk.

At 31 March 2008, if the market price of the yarn had
increased/decreased by 1% with all other variables held
constant, post-tax profit for the year would have been
approximately HK$18,962,000 (2007: HK$19,677,000)
lower/higher as a result of the change in market price of
yarn.

At 31 March 2008, if the market price of the dye and
other chemical had increased/decreased by 1% with all
other variables held constant, post-tax profit for the year
would have been approximately HK$3,143,000 (2007:
HK$2,638,000) lower/higher as a result of the change in
market price of dye and other chemical.
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Financial risk management (Continued)
Financial risk factors (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

41

(@)

(i)

(i)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising
from various currency exposures, primarily with respect
to Chinese Renminbi (“RMB”) and United States dollar
(“US$”). Foreign exchange risk arises from future
commercial transactions, recognised assets and
liabilities and net investments in foreign operations.

The Group’s transactions in the PRC are settled in
RMB, therefore the foreign exchange risk is considered
to be insignificant. In addition, the conversion of RMB
into foreign currencies is subject to the rules and
regulations of the foreign exchange control promulgated
by the PRC government.

As the Hong Kong dollar is pegged against the US
dollar, the related foreign exchange risk is considered to
be insignificant.

The Group has certain investments in foreign
operations, whose net assets are exposed to foreign
currency translation risk. The Group manages its
foreign exchange risks by performing regular review and
monitoring its foreign exchange exposure.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

Except for the cash at bank and short-term bank
deposits and borrowings, details of which have been
disclosed in Notes 15 and 18 respectively, the Group
has no other significant interest-bearing assets or
liabilities.

Bank deposits and borrowings at variable rates expose
the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. Bank deposits
and borrowings at fixed rates expose the Group to fair
value interest rate risk. The Group manages its interest
rate risk by performing regular review and monitoring its
interest rate exposures. The Group has not used any
interest rate swaps to hedge its exposure to interest
rate risk.

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

4  Financial risk management (Continued)
4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(@)

(®)

Market risk (Continued)
(i)  Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk (Continued)

At 31 March 2008, if the market interest rates had been
50 basis points higher/lower with all other variables
held constant, the Group’s net profit would have been
approximately HK$4,359,000 (2007: HK$543,000)
higher/lower, mainly as a result of higher/lower interest
income from bank deposits.

At 31 March 2008, if the market interest rates had been
50 basis points higher/lower with all other variables
held constant, the Group’s net profit would have been
approximately HK$3,995,000 (2007: HK$4,117,000)
lower/higher, mainly as a result of higher/lower interest
expenses on floating rate borrowings.

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from cash at bank and short-term bank
deposits with banks and financial institutions and credit
exposures to customers, including outstanding receivables.

At 31 March 2008 and 2007, substantially all the bank
balances and short-term bank deposits as detailed in Note
15 are held in major financial institutions located in Hong
Kong, Mainland China, Sri Lanka and Macau; all derivative
financial instruments are also entered into with these financial
institutions, which management believes are of high credit
quality. The Group has a policy to limit the amount of credit
exposure to any financial institution and management does
not expect any losses arising from non-performance by these
financial institutions.
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Financial risk management (Continued)
Financial risk factors (Continued)

41

(®)

(@)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk
with customers. The Group has policies in place to ensure
that sales are made to customers with an appropriate credit
history and the Group performs periodic credit evaluations of
its customers. The credit quality of the customers is assessed
based on its financial position, past experience and other
factors. Normally the Group does not require collaterals
from trade debtors. The existing debtors have no significant
defaults in the past. The Group’s historical experience in
collection of trade and other receivables falls within the
recorded allowances and the directors are of the opinion that
adequate provision for uncollectible receivables has been
made.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management includes maintaining
sufficient cash and the availability of funding through an
adequate amount of committed credit facilities.

The Group’s primary cash requirements have been for
additions of and upgrades on property, plant and equipment,
payment of debts and payment for purchases and
operating expenses. The Group finances its working capital
requirements through a combination of funds generated from
its operations and bank borrowings.

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements to ensure it maintains
sufficient cash and cash equivalents and has available
funding through adequate amount of committed credit
facilities to meet its working capital requirements.

The table below analyses the Group’s and the Company’s
financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based
on the remaining period at the balance sheet date to the
contractual maturity date.

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued) B SRR MY EE ()
4  Financial risk management (Continued) 4 EIERER(E)
4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 41 BHEREMREZEE)
(c)  Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) TEEZEE(E)
()  Group 0 AKE
Within Between 1 Between 2
1year and2years and5 years Total
15K 1FZE26F 2FFESHF st
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FHT FHET FHET
Borrowings BE 275,022 260,992 132,695 668,709
Finance lease obligations B &EfAERIE 1,462 756 115 2,333
Trade and bills payables EAERAREE 611,021 - - 611,021
Accruals and other payables FEzt1E B K Hith
FEFFRE 221,792 - - 221,792
Derivative financial instruments T4 ¢8I T & 1,327 - - 1,327
At 31 March 2008 A20083H31H 1,110,624 261,748 132,810 1,505,182
Borrowings B8 513,628 382,242 33,531 929,401
Finance lease obligations B ETHE A 3,090 736 78 3,904
Trade and bills payables FERBR R R 464,574 - - 464,574
Accruals and other payables FEEHIE R R EAM
FEf A 140,806 - - 140,806
Derivative financial instruments T4 &gt T A 234 - - 234
At 31 March 2007 MR2007F3A31H 1,122,332 382,978 33,609 1,638,919
(i)  Company iy ARF
Within Between 1 Between 2
1year and2years and 5 years Total
1FR 1FEZE25F 2FZESFE st
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$’000
FHT FHT FHET FHET
Amounts due to subsidiaries FE{fK{E A TFIE 69,435 - - 69,435
Accruals and other payables fEzt1E B K Hitb
PEATRRIE 3,827 - - 3,827
At 31 March 2008 7A2008F3831H 73,262 - - 73,262
Amounts due to subsidiaries  FEfTHTEB A BIFIE 46,069 - - 46,069
Accruals and other payables ~ FEEHTEE R E b
FERTFRIA 128 - - 128
At 31 March 2007 M2007F3A31H 46,197 - - 46,197
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4

Financial risk management (Continued)

4.2

4.3

Fair value estimation

The carrying amounts of the Group’s current financial assets,
including cash and bank balances, trade and bills receivables
and other receivables, and the Group’s current financial liabilities,
including trade and bills payables, other payables and borrowings,
approximate their fair values due to their short maturities. The
nominal value less estimated credit adjustments for financial assets
and liabilities with a maturity of less than one year are assumed to
approximate their fair values.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-current liabilities,
including long-term bank loans and loan from a minority
shareholder approximate their fair values as the impact of
discounting is not significant.

Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to
provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders
and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of
capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors capital
on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as total
borrowings (including current and non-current borrowings and
finance lease obligations as shown in the consolidated balance
sheet) divided by total assets. The gearing ratios at 31 March 2008
and 2007 were as follows:

BRI EE ()
IR ERR ()

4

4.2

4.3

DNFEME
AEBEzRBEREE(BRRELR
1T858k BRI R E AR
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FRHEREBEMEEmREE A FER
o RHAA-FRAZEREERARE
ZEERGHEEAEREREAEAF
[EREES
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) ZRREEEE A FERE
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REFEN - L ERREERE (21
HAEERBERMINEABHEER
BEHEARE) RABEERETE - 1
2008 B2007F3 AB1 B Z BEAR AR
=T

2008 2007

20084 20074

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FHET

Total borrowings BB 671,042 933,305
Total assets BERE 4,402,961 3,040,911
Gearing ratio ERBELER 15% 31%
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5

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and judgements used in preparing the financial statements
are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and
other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future.
The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal
the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed
below.

(@

(b)

Useful lives and residual values of property, plant and
equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful
lives, residual values and related depreciation charges for its
property, plant and equipment. This estimate is based on the
historical experience of the actual useful lives of property, plant
and equipment of similar nature and functions. Management will
increase the depreciation charge where useful lives are less than
previously estimated lives, it will write-off or write-down technically
obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or
sold. Actual economic lives may differ from estimated useful lives;
actual residual values may differ from estimated residual values.
Periodic review could result in a change in depreciable lives and
residual values and therefore depreciation expense in the future
periods.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment, leasehold land
and land use rights

Property, plant and equipment, leasehold land and land use
rights are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. The recoverable amounts have been determined
based on value-in-use calculations or fair values less cost to sell.
These calculations require the use of judgements and estimates.

Management judgement is required in the area of asset impairment
particularly in assessing: (i) whether an event has occurred that
may indicate that the related asset values may not be recoverable;
(i) whether the carrying value of an asset can be supported by the
recoverable amount, being the higher of fair value less costs to
sell or net present value of future cash flows which are estimated
based upon the continued use of the asset in the business; and (i)
the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in preparing cash
flow projections including whether these cash flow projections are
discounted using an appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions
selected by management in assessing impairment, including the
discount rates or the growth rate assumptions in the cash flow
projections, could materially affect the net present value used in
the impairment test and as a result affect the Group’s financial
condition and results of operations. If there is a significant adverse
change in the projected performance and resulting future cash flow
projections, it may be necessary to take an impairment charge to
the income statement.
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5

6

78

Critical accounting estimates and judgements (Continued)

(9]

(d)

)

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion
and selling expenses. These estimates are based on the current
market condition and the historical experience of manufacturing
and selling products of similar nature. It could change significantly
as a result of changes in customer taste and competitor actions in
response to severe industry cycle. Management reassesses these
estimates at each balance sheet date.

Provision for impairment of trade, bills and other receivables

The Group’s management determines the provision for impairment
of trade, bills and other receivables based on an assessment of
the recoverability of the receivables. This assessment is based
on the credit history of its customers and other debtors and the
current market condition, and requires the use of judgements and
estimates. Management reassesses the provision at each balance
sheet date.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in a number of jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the provision for
income taxes. There are certain transactions and calculations
for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax
provisions in the period in which such determination is made.

Segment information

@

(b)

Analysis of sales by category
Sales for the year represent principally income derived from
manufacturing and trading of textile products.

Primary reporting format — business segments

No business segment analysis is shown as more than 90% of the
Group’s principal activity is manufacturing and trading of textile
products.

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited
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6 Segment information (Continued)
(c) Secondary reporting format — geographical segments
The Group primarily operates in China and Hong Kong.

The Group’s sales by geographical locations are determined by
the final destination where the products are delivered:

BTSRRI EE )

S EER ()

6

(¢

REFEFTR - HEDH
AEETERPEREELE

REE LI D 2 SHE T AR MR
ZEREE IO

2008 2007
20084 2007
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#&xT FHET
China th 1,050,030 1,030,283
South East Asia SRR 1,065,600 797,346
Hong Kong B 791,989 895,418
Sri Lanka e 710,267 712,543
Others Hih 662,760 767,767
4,280,646 4,203,357

The Group’s assets are located in the following geographical AEEZBEMPAATHIE :

areas:

2008 2007
20085 20074
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET FHET
China =8 2,140,217 1,866,278
Hong Kong EB 1,694,462 770,772
Sri Lanka HEHR 401,599 286,718
Others EAfih 166,683 117,143
4,402,961 3,040,911

The Group’s capital expenditure, based on where the assets are

REE 2 BRI IRE E P BB

located, is allocated as follows: Nk
2008 2007
20084 20074
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
China m 352,355 399,773
Hong Kong B 1,946 8,808
Sri Lanka HEBR 102,606 23,524
Others Hib 41 249
456,948 432,354
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7

Leasehold land and land use rights

The Group’s interests in leasehold land and land use rights represent
prepaid operating lease payments and their net book value are analysed

Ly ST E )

7 MEIRktiEAE
REBWEET R T E AR #mnTE
NEEBHOZE - HREFEDTOT -

as follows:
2008 2007
2008F 20074
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FET
At 1 April R4A18 22,050 21,775
Additions nNE 5,265 -
Amortisation s (564) (535)
Currency translation differences SN B B 1,585 810
At 31 March M3A31H 28,336 22,050
2008 2007
2008F 20074
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FET
In Hong Kong held on: NEBRE
Leases of between 10 to 50 years FHNF10E50F 2 3,791 3,888
In China held on: RPBIRE -
Land use rights of between 10 to 50 years FEANFA0E504 2 + i F 17,497 16,334
In Sri Lanka held on: RETERRIFE
Leases of between 10 to 50 years FHNF10250F 2L 7,048 1,828
28,336 22,050

Amortisation of prepaid operating lease payments for the years
ended 31 March 2007 and 2008 has been included in general and
administrative expenses in the income statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) BRI EE ()
8 Property, plant and equipment 8 W - BMEKRXE
Furniture Motor
Construction  Leasehold Plant and and vehicles
Buildings in progress improvements  machinery  equipment  and vessel Total
BT EEIR HEVEEE BEREE HARRE EREE 2
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FiEn FiEr T T T FiEn FiEn
At 1 April 2006 R2006F4818
Cost 5% 322,371 117,197 7,151 1,023,165 110,812 17,552 1,598,248
Accumulated depreciation ZitHE (31,567) - (3456)  (570,208) (63,737) (11,897)  (680,885)
Net book amount REFE 290,804 117,197 3,695 452,937 47,075 5,655 917,363

Year ended 31 March 2007 H22007E3A31 HILEE

Opening net book amount ENEETE 290,804 17,197 3,69 452937 47,075 5,655 917,363
Currency translation differences ~ SMEHAZ 2% 13,766 9,816 - 21,488 1,604 114 46,878
Additions "E - 213,622 714 194,998 17,486 5,534 432,354
Disposals HE - (1,031) - (630) 82) (10) (1,753)
Depreciation it (13,501) - (1688)  (161,819) (18,005) (0.743)  (197,756)
Transfers E 41,976 (68,565) - 24,275 2,235 79 -
Closing net book amount FRERFE 333,045 271,039 2,721 531,249 50,403 8,629 1,197,086
At 31 March 2007 1200737318

Cost B 379,016 271,039 7,865 1,282,032 130,330 21,794 2,092,076
Accumulated depreciation ZiE (45,971) - (5,144) (750,783) (79,927) (13,165) (894,990)
Net book amount FEFE 333,045 271,039 2,721 531,249 50,408 8,629 1,197,086

Year ended 31 March 2008 HZ2008F3A31HILEE

Opening net book amount EEESE 333,045 271,039 2721 531,249 50,403 8629 1,197,086
Currency translation differences  SMEHBREZE 40,290 13,181 - 51,617 3,400 233 108,721
Additions NE 5,823 208,644 - 224,677 13,050 4,754 456,948
Disposals L& (3,171) - - (441) (31) (884) (4,527)
Depreciation i (20,214) - (1783)  (192,108)  (18,645) (043)  (235641)
Transfers ] 185,021 (306,486) - 114,613 6,307 545 -
Closing net book amount FREmTE 540,794 186,378 988 729,609 54,484 10,334 1,522,587
At 31 March 2008 12008%3831H

Cost AR 611,232 186,378 7,864 1,715,240 158,030 23,277 2,702,021
Accumulated depreciation ZETE (70,438) - (6,876) (985,631) (103,546) (12,943)  (1,179,434)

Net book amount REFE 540,794 186,378 988 729,609 54,484 10,334 1,522,587

BAGBIERAERD 81
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8

82

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
Depreciation expense recognised in the income statement is analysed as

Ly ST E )

8 WX BEERE®E)

RER AR 2 FTER DT

follows:
2008 2007
2008 20074F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT
Cost of sales SHE AR 228,046 189,605
General and administrative expenses —RITHFAX 7,595 8,151
235,641 197,756

The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment pledged
to secure bank facilities of the Group amounted to approximately

HIK$94,881,000 (2007: HK$96,849,000).

Summary of property, plant and equipment held under finance leases

AEBMERRTREMERZDE  BE
N R E Y BR (B 495 94,881,0007% 7T (2007

F 1 96,849,000/87T) ©

REBEBEOFEZYE  BELREHE

are analysed as follows: ST

2008 2007

20084 20074

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FE T FAT

Cost — capitalised finance lease AN — B A TR A T B R 4,922 4,990
Less: accumulated depreciation W BEHITE (1,472) (591)
Net book value MR E 3,450 4,399
Depreciation for the year FRITE 886 481

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited
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9

Investments in subsidiaries

Unlisted shares, at cost

p S EL IR
9 MRHEBATZIRE

2008

20084
HK$’000

FEx

SE LR - RAAR 8

2007
20074

HK$’000

THETT

As at 31 March 2008 and 2007, the Company has direct and indirect
interests in the following subsidiaries:

Name of subsidiary

WELR AR

Shares held directly:
BEEERG

Pacific Textured Jersey
Holdings Ltd. (Note (i))(#7z#1))

Pacific Textiles Overseas
Holdings Ltd.

Pacific HK & China
Holdings Ltd.

Pacific SPM Holdings Ltd.

Solid Ally International Ltd.

Lehan Resources Ltd.

Fast Right Group Ltd.
IEASEERAT]

Shares held indirectly:
BERERD

Pacific Textiles Limited

ERNE 1IN

Pacific SPM Investment Limited
EXREGHEREBRAR

Pacific (Nansha) Investments Limited
ER(ED)REERAR

Pacific Overseas Textiles Macao
Commercial Offshore Limited

BRI ERPIBREEREERAT

Place of Issued and fully

incorporation/ paid up share Equity interest

establishment/ capital/registered attributable

operation __capital to the Group

/i ERTREREZ K&

EfFhE A/ HER RS

2008 2007

20085 20074

British Virgin Islands HK$1 100% 100%

RERLES 1T

British Virgin Islands HK$1 100% 100%

EBRNEHS iy

British Virgin Islands HK$1 100% 100%

RERUES 1T

British Virgin Islands HK$1 100% 100%

EERLES 18T

British Virgin Islands HK$1 100% 100%

RERLES 1T

British Virgin Islands HK$1 100% 100%

EBRNEHS iy

British Virgin Islands US$1,000 100% -

EBRLHE 1,000 7T

Hong Kong HK$103,000,000 100% 100%

EA 103,000,000 7T

Hong Kong HK$1 100% -

0 18T

Hong Kong HK$22,000,000 100% -

BA 22,000,000/87T

Macau MOP1,030,000 100% 100%

g 1,030,000

Principal activities

Investment holding
RERR

Investment holding

REER
Investment holding
RERR
Investment holding
KA
Investment holding
RERR

Investment holding

RARR

Investment holding

RAER

Textiles trading
DREmES

Investment holding
KA
Investment holding
RERR

Textiles trading

720084 8220073 4318 + ARAR T
PS8 2 R 3 o el e A

EAHIZBERAT P

2008F F 3R]
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9

10

84

Investments in subsidiaries (Continued)

Ly ST E )

RHB AR ZRE (8)

9

Place of Issued and fully

incorporation/ paid up share

establishment/ capital/registered

Name of subsidiary operation capital
i/ ERTRERZ

WEARERE Bt A/ HEmER
Textured Jersey Lanka (Private) SriLanka Rs1,597,229,000
Limited (Note (i))(#7z2i)) HEEF 1,597,229,000
HEBERER

Pacific (Panyu) Textiles Mainland China Registered/
Limited (Note (i) HREA paid up capital
EX(EB)HRALBRAR M) US$55,700,000
H/ BREA

55,700,000%7C

Pacific/Textured Jersey Ltd. United Kingdom GBP100
K 1005

Note:

(i) Company established as wholly foreign owned enterprise in Mainland

China.

(i)  On 25 January 2008, Pacific Textured Jersey Holdings Ltd., a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, acquired an additional 8% equity interest
in Textured Jersey Lanka (Private) Limited at a cash consideration of
approximately HK$12,784,000. Consequently, the Group’s equity interest
in Textured Jersey Lanka (Private) Limited was increased from 52% to 60%.

Interest in associates
Movements of share of net assets of associates are as follows:

10

Equity interest

attributable
to the Group Principal activities
K&
Bl R AR TEEY
2008 2007
2008 20076
60% 52%  Textiles manufacturing
and trading
PEnEERES
100% 100%  Manufacture and sale
of textile products
DRERSERHE
100% 100%  Fabrics agency
AR

wist

) BARRRETEAMBKINZEINIED

£

(i)  F2008F1H25H « AQRIEZEKBAR A
Pacific Textured Jersey Holdings Ltd. 488
Textured Jersey Lanka (Private) Limitedz&
8% AR - IR e REX12,784,0007%
TC © #31% - AREER Textured Jersey Lanka
(Private) Limited 2z J& 2N # & B 52% & N =

60% °

REFE Q7 2 s
BB ERNRIEEFEZEFHMT

2008 2007
20085 20074
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FAT
At 1 April R4F1H 13,070 10,024
Capital injection (Note) FE (K ) = 4,524
Currency translation differences GNEE YA = %R 1,130 519
Share of results FE(G 24
— profit/(loss) for the year —FERHF(E51E) 886 (1,997)
At 31 March M3HA31H 15,086 13,070

Note: On 25 May 20086, the Group subscribed for a 50% equity interest in
Fillattice-Pacific Ltd. at a cash consideration of HK$1,950,000. The other
50% equity interest is owned by an independent third party.

On 8 June 2006, the Group injected further capital of HK$2,574,000 in
SPM Automotive Textile Co., Ltd..

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2008

Wit -

R2006FE5 8258 @ AEEKRESKE
1,950,000/ T REE H B R A 7150% MK
TR o HARS0% AR v — BB F
A -

R2006F6A8H @ AEBEUFTIEAR(E
M) AEGHBERBRARE—FEE
2,574,000/ 7T °
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10

Interest in associates (Continued)

BTSRRI EE )

10

The particulars of the associates as at 31 March 2008 and 2007 are set

out as follows:

Name of associate

WenaaR

SPM Automotive Textile Co., Ltd. ()
EIER(BM)AEHBERERRRY)

Fillattice-Pacific Ltd.
AERAR

Note:

Place of
incorporation/
establishment/
operation
Bilg e
EfFhY

Mainland China
RE R

Hong Kong

Issued and fully
paid up share
capital/registered

capital
BRTRARZ
BA/FRER

Registered/
paid up capital
US$5,000,000

By Vv
5,000,0005%T

HK$3,900,000
3,900,000 ¢

(i) Company established as wholly foreign owned enterprise in Mainland

China.

The Group’s share of assets, liabilities, commitments and results of

interest in associates were as follows:

WIS 2 B2 R ()
$2008% 200743431 RS AR 2 3K
;oM

Equity interest

attributable
to the Group Principal activities
KEE
ElERAER IEXK
2008 2007
2008F 20076
33% 33%  Manufacturing and
trading of vehicles
related textile
products
HERERRERH
Hifim
50% 50%  Trading of textile
products
BEEGER

() BARREFEAMK IO ZEIERE -

AEBELBLEARZEE « A RKER
HEEWNT

2008 2007

2008 2007

HK$’000 HK$’000

F#ET FHET

Total assets BEMAE 22,750 16,050

Total liabilities AfEes 7,665 2,980

Revenue WA 23,238 2,827
Profit/(loss) for the year FriEHl(EiE) 886 (1,997)

EAMIZEERAT Py
20084 F 1§
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11 Available-for-sale financial assets

12

B RS ERR M EE ()
11 AEEEEmERE

2008 2007
2008F 20074
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
At 1 April ®4A18 1,824 1,830
Additions =0 - 276
Disposals HeE - (282)
Impairment loss charged to et Al s & 2R EEE
the income statement (16) -
At 31 March M3A31H 1,808 1,824
Listed equity securities in Hong Kong, REZE T ZFES
at fair value BAFE 67 83
Club debentures, at fair value BEES  BATE 1,741 1,741
1,808 1,824
Maximum exposure to credit risk SAEERE 1,808 1,824

The fair values of listed equity securities and club debentures are based

on quoted/available market prices.

Available-for-sale financial assets are denominated in Hong Kong dollar.

EESREBES 2 ATETRENE,

ERTH{EETE °

AHHESREENETIIE -

Inventories 12 78
2008 2007
20085 20074
HK$’000 HK$’000
FH&T FHET
Raw materials B 695,366 675,153
Work-in-progress TR 119,565 102,338
Finished goods BIRK G 132,923 140,653
Consumables SHFES 45,431 35,191
993,285 953,335

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included in cost
of sales during the year amounted to HK$3,100,806,000 (2007:

HK$2,852,552,000).

There were no inventories carried at net realisable value as at 31 March

2007 and 2008.

Inventories pledged as security for the banking facilities available
to the Group amounted to approximately HK$78,000,000 (2007:

HIK$78,000,000).

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2008

AFEEER/FN - Ut ABERAZFE
X 78 53 51| % 3,100,806,000 & 7T ( 2007 4 :

2,852,552,000/ 7T ) °

#2007 F 12008 F 3 A31 A W i o] B IR F

BIRZFE -

AEBAERTREFLERZFENS
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13 Trade and bills receivables

p S EL IR
13 FEWERAKREE

2008 2007

20084F 20074

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FHET

Trade receivables FEUBR TR 481,130 461,611
Bills receivables EUWERE 137,565 133,010
618,695 594,621

Less: provision for impairment of B FEMERFURBE B R

trade receivables (9,987) (15,000)
608,708 579,621

The carrying amounts of trade and bills receivables approximate their
fair values.

Majority of the Group’s sales are with credit terms of 30 to 60 days. The
ageing analysis of the trade and bills receivables was as follows:

FEWRF N R IE 2 BRE E SR A ERE -

AEBAFD HE 2 EEHNFI0E60X -
FEUERF LRI 2 BRI DA -

2008 2007
20084 20074

HK$’000 HK$’000

F#ET FAET

0 - 60 days 0E60K 472,098 449,994
61 - 120 days 612 120K 122,646 121,118
Over 120 days HBiB120K 23,951 23,509
618,695 594,621

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk with respect
to trade and bills receivables. Trade receivables within credit terms are
normally not considered impaired. The Group’s credit risk control policy is
disclosed in Note 4.

REBARBRYEARRE ZERERE
ERK - FEHAZERER-—KRTER
RRME - AEBENEERBREENHF4R

= o

EAHMZEERAT P
20084 F 1§
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Ly ST E )

13 FEWERA N ZE (%)
M2008%E3A31H  DREZEKER
/49,987,000 7 7T ( 2007 4 : 15,000,000
BIL) o M2008F 3 A31 HEEEHEA
9,987,000 i 7T ( 2007 % : 15,000,000 &
TL) o ZERUWERRZ BRI AT ¢

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

13 Trade and bills receivables (Continued)
As at 31 March 2008, trade receivables of HK$9,987,000 (2007:
HK$15,000,000) were impaired. The amount of the provision was
HK$9,987,000 as at 31 March 2008 (2007: HK$15,000,000). The
ageing analysis of these trade receivables was as follows:

88

2008 2007
2008 20074
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T FHET

Past due by: B -
0 - 60 days 0E60X 3,759 524
61 - 120 days 61E120K 843 5,038
Over 120 days HBiE120K 5,385 9,438
9,987 15,000

Movements on the provision for impairment of trade receivables are as
follows:

LB LR E R 2 ESIT

2008 2007

20084 20074

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FAET

At 1 April R4F1H 15,000 33,730
Reversal of provision B O #E (5,013) (18,730)
At 31 March M3A31H 9,987 15,000

The creation and release of provision for impaired receivables have been
included in distribution and selling expenses in the income statement.
Amounts charged to the allowance account are generally written off
when there is no expectation of recovering additional cash.

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2008
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13 Trade and bills receivables (Continued)

As at 31 March 2008, trade receivables of HK$107,415,000 (2007:
HK$158,159,000) were past due but not impaired. These relate to a
number of customers for whom there is no recent history of default. The
ageing analysis of these trade receivables was as follows:

p S EL IR
13 EWERAREE (&)

R2008F3A31H @ @B ERWEY
JfE U BR 7K A& 107,415,000 7 7T ( 2007 £ -
158,159,000/ 7T ) Bi %/ T X P £ &3 I &
IR E R - X SRR Z BRER DT a0
—F :

2008 2007
20084 2007
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT

Past due by: 2y
0 - 60 days 0260k 91,494 142,563
61 — 120 days 612120k 11,659 14,292
Over 120 days HiB120K 4,262 1,304
107,415 158,159

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the fair
value of each class of receivables mentioned above. The Group does
not hold any collateral as security.

Trade and bills receivables were denominated in the following
currencies:

RERH  FAEERRAS DS EHIE
WHRR 2 A FE - REBY EEFE EAIER
ERmERER -

FERSRF R EBIL T F B HEHE -

2008 2007
20084 20074

HK$’000 HK$'000

F&T FAT

HK$ &I 302,933 295,184
RMB AR 16,707 2,768
Uss$ ETT 297,827 296,539
Others Hib 1,228 130
618,695 594,621

BEAGHERERAT

2008F F 3R]
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(a)

Ly ST E )

14 Deposits, prepayments and other receivables 14 £E - BAIREBEREMERIE

Group (@ #A£E

2008 2007

2008F 20074

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FHET

Rental, utility and other deposits Me  2ARGEEEMZS 464 416

Prepayments BRI RIE 15,628 15,388

Tax recoverable AJ U EI R IR 18,406 15,928

Insurance claims recoverable AJ U B4R BB & - 1,194

Other receivables =Rl e Q] 892 2,465

35,390 35,391

(b)

Deposits, prepayments and other receivables were denominated

Be  BNFAREAEYRGRIEE T

in the following currencies: BHEHE -
2008 2007
2008F 20074
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FET
HK$ T 2,649 6,848
RMB AR 13,995 12,079
Us$ ET 12,153 13,420
Others HAit 6,593 3,044
35,390 35,391

Company (o) ARH

2008 2007
20085 20074
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FET
Other receivables Hth e U FOE 850 914

Other receivables were denominated in Hong Kong dollar.

The carrying amounts of deposits, prepayments and other
receivables approximate their fair values.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the
fair value of the receivable balances mentioned above. The Group
does not hold any collateral as security.

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2008
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15 Cash and bank balances

p S EL IR
15 BENIRITEER

(@

Group REE
2008 2007
2008F 20074
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Cash at bank and in hand RITEFHRS 303,684 117,458
Short-term bank deposits EEIRITER 871,797 108,698
1,175,481 226,156
Maximum exposure to credit risk SAEERR 1,173,895 225,801

The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits was 4.2%
(2007: 3.9%) for the year; these deposits have maturities between
1 to 90 days (2007: 1 to 12 days) at inception.

Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates.

Cash and bank balances were denominated in the following
currencies:

REERBPBITERERFNEB42%
(2007 FF : 3.9%) i ZETFHRIER
EHABANTF1 290K (20074F : 1E12
K) e

RIRFTZ RS AT RRITFRAEZF
BAtE e

Re RIRITRESRIZA T EEIIE -

2008 2007
20084 20074

HK$’000 HK$'000

F&T FAT

HK$ &I 681,937 79,039
RMB AR 56,840 41,914
Us$ ETT 409,584 101,496
Japanese Yen H 24,638 -
Others Hih 2,482 3,707
1,175,481 226,156

The Group’s cash and cash equivalents denominated in RMB
are deposited with banks in Mainland China. The conversion of
these RMB denominated balances into foreign currencies and the
remittance of funds out of Mainland China is subject to the rules
and regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by the
Mainland China Government.

AEBUARKEIEZREMRESEE
MTER P BIARE ZIRTT o HIRE
ARBIEESRRINEARERE S
Mt INMEE ST P B A BURT AR AR 2 51
PEE HIAR AR ARE

BAGBIERAERD 91
2008F F 3R]
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15 Cash and bank balances (Continued)

BRI EE ()
15 BENBITER(E

\

(b) Company (b) AQF
2008 2007
20084 20074
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FAT
Cash at bank RITH S 25,584 41
Short-term bank deposits EEIRITER 808,669 -
834,253 41
Maximum exposure to credit risk EAEERR 834,253 41

The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits was 4.1%
(2007: Nil) for the year; these deposits have maturities between 1

to 90 days (2007: Nil) at inception.

AEERERTTERERFNE E41%
(2007 : ) : ZEGFRREREIE
BN FA1EI0K (20074 : 4#£) -

RIRTT 2 IR & AT HIRITIF A & 2 )%

Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank

deposit rates.

Cash and bank balances were denominated in the following

N
BETE -

R MIRITHEBIRIA T ERTIE -

currencies:
2008 2007
20084 20074
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
HK$ PEIT 566,523 5
Us$ ETT 243,094 36
Japanese Yen H 24,636 -
834,253 41

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited
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16 Share capital

Share capital

16 B
(@

BTSRRI EE )

BRA

Number of Nominal value
shares of shares
BRHER RHEE
HK$’000
FHET
Authorised: JETE
Shares of HK$0.001 each 720064 K 2007F4 A1H
at 1 April 2006 and 2007 FRLEEO0.001/8 T 2 BN 50,000,000 50
Increase in authorised share capital of NI EE0.00178 7T
HK$0.001 each (Note (i) IETERRAR (BT EE) 4,950,000,000 4,950
At 31 March 2008 7A2008F3831H 5,000,000,000 5,000
Issued and fully paid: BETREE ¢
Shares of HK$0.001 each 720064 K% 2007F4 811
at 1 April 2006 and 2007 BARMEE0.001B T2 IR 10,747,020 i
Shares issued to the then equity MER 2 ARFRAERFR A
shareholders of the Company BEITEMR0.0018 T2 ABRFIVE
credited as fully paid of HK$0.001 B 2 B0 (K1 e ()
each (Note (iii)) 1,063,954,980 1,064
Share issued by global offering as AZBRE T A BT EREE
fully paid of HK$0.001 each (Note (iv)) 0.001 7T 2 BB B tn (B7aE(0v)) 358,234,000 358
At 31 March 2008 7A2008F3531H 1,432,936,000 1,433

Note:

(i)

(V)

On 27 April 2007, the Company’s authorised share capital was
increased by HK$4,950,000 by the creation of 4,950,000,000 shares
of HK$0.001 each.

Pursuant to the written resolution of shareholders of the Company
passed on 27 April 2007, the Company adopted a share option
scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) subject to the terms and
conditions therein. The Board of Directors may, under the Share
Option Scheme, grant options to eligible full-time employees,
directors or non-executive directors of the Group. On 18 July 2007,
the Company granted options to 88 eligible full-time employees to
subscribe for a total of 22,820,000 shares of the Company at an
exercise price of HK$5.04 per share.

On 17 May 2007, 1,063,954,980 shares of HK$0.001 each were
allotted and issued to the then equity shareholders of the Company
in proportion to their respective shareholdings, by the capitalisation of
HK$1,063,955 from the share premium account as payment in full of
par value.

On 18 May 2007, the Company completed a global offering of
358,234,000 shares of HK$0.001 each at a price of HK$5.35 per
share.

Byt -

()  M2007FE4F278 » RABEBIEIL
4,950,000,000 A% & % HE & 0.001 &
T2 - AR E 2z s AR AN AN
4,950,000 7T °

(i) REBEARARRER2007F4[278iE
B—AEERER - AR HRNE
A&t B ([ BRI ) - HAER
B FTE 2 IR AR - IRIRIE AR E
e EERARNAEESEREE
B8 - EENFNTESRLEER
# o B20077A188 » RAREH
BRETSMAEKEMES - UFT
[1%5.04 7 7T 318 £ 22,820,000 R A A
AR ©

@iy  M2007F5 17 BIAEBRHELL B - B2
2 I 317 1,063,954,980 % & AR I (&
0.001 BT RNGERERFEA -
R E B BR A 41,063,955 7T
PIEE SRR -

vy M2007F5818H @ ARRINUER
5.35/ 7T 7ok 2 Bk 3% £ 358,234,000/4%
SREE H0.001 BT 2 Befp o

EAUMIZBERAT
20084 F 1§
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16 Share capital (Continued)

94

(b)

Share option scheme

The Share Option Scheme was approved and adopted by the
shareholders of the Company on 27 April 2007. On 9 July 2007,
the Board of Directors approved to grant options to 88 eligible
full-time employees on 18 July 2007 to subscribe for a total
of 22,820,000 shares of the Company at an exercise price of
HK$5.04 per share with vesting periods of 3 years. The options
are exercisable from 18 July 2010 to 17 July 2017 (both days
inclusive), and shall expire on 18 July 2017.

B ER R M EE ()
16 BRAN(E®)

(b) HERRFESTE
BT 1D 2007 % 4 B 27 B ER
AR EBOE MR - BR2007F7 A9
B EZBHER2007F7 A18HH
B8EAEBREBEERHERE - 7
BRITHEEER5.04B TRERAATA R
22,820,000/ /%15 - RBEIA=F - I8
fR AR 720107 A18H E£2017F7 A
17H(BEEEMRXER)ITE - KN
201757 B18R fE@im °

Movements in the above share options are as follows: LB T
Number of
share options
BIREEE
Granted on 18 July 2007 R2007F7 A18AH T 22,820,000
Forfeited Y2 (590,000)
Balance at 31 March 2008 4200853831 B &tk 22,230,000

The fair value of the share options granted on 18 July 2007
was determined using the Binomial valuation model. The fair
value determined was approximately HK$27,755,000 of which
approximately HK$6,533,000 was recognised in the income
statement for the year ended 31 March 2008 (2007: Nil). The
significant inputs into the valuation model are as follows:

Share price at the date of grant HK$4.8
Annual risk-free interest rate 4.8%
Expected option life 6 years
Expected volatility 32%
Expected dividend yield 4%
Expected employee exit rate 11%

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2008

R2007F7 A18 BB R KB IERIE —HH
EEEEABTEEQATE HAFENA
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BTSRRI EE )

17 B
Group (@ #A£E
Foreign
Capital Legal  Statutory  currency Other
Share reserve reserve reserve translation Share-based  reserves  Retained
premium (Note (i)~ (Notef)) —(Note i) reserve reserve  (Note(v)  eamings Total
ERfE  Snf TR MERE O NRRE HibEs
WROEE (W) W) (W) e EEZEE  (Hn)  REER @it
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS(000
i T Thn i T Fin TiEn T Fim
At 1 April 2006 R2006%471A 177,314 11,299 500 14,299 9,573 - - 831,500 1,044,485
Profit attrbutable toequiy ~ AAFERHEA

holders of the Company [yl - - - - - - - 555,698 555,098
Transfer to statutory reserve.  ERZETE G - - - 20,603 - - - (20,603) -
Currency translation differences SNEHHE £ - - - - 74551 - - - 74551
Dividends paid BRARE - - - - - - - (234000)  (234,000)
At 31 March 2007 200730318 177,314 11,299 500 34,902 84,124 - - 113259 1,440,734
At 1 April 2007 R2007E451H 177,314 11,299 500 34,902 84,124 - - 113259 1,440,734
Proft atiributable toequity AR FERHBA

holders of the Company ety - - - - - - - 392003 392,09
Transfer tostatutory reserve.  EATETHE - - - 20,403 - - - (20,408) -
Premium fromissuance for ~ MARFREERAEST

share capttel by global offering  FAZEE (#i))

(Note 1) 1,916,104 - - - - - - - 1916194
Global offering expenses PHBERT (120,597) - - - - - - - (120,597)
Shares issued by capitalisation  FAfR(35B5

from share premium account ~ AALEAR(A (1,084) - - - - - - - (1,084)
Acquisttion of additional interest [ SR EIEENE

ina subsidiary fomaminorty ~ AFER (Hiit)

shareholder (Note (iv) - - - - - - (3,559) - (3,059)
Currency translation differences HMEHREZEH - - - - 81,138 - - - 81,138
Share-based compensation R EE T

eXpenses - - - - - 6,533 - - 6,533
Dividends paid BRARS {77,314)  (10209) - - - - - (B85527)  (873,140)
At 31 March 2008 R2008E331A 1,794,533 1,000 500 55305 165,262 6,533 (3559) 818758 2,838,332
Representing: RN
Final dividend proposed BERERS 107470 -

Others Eft 1,687,063 818758
1,794,633 818,758

EAHEEERAT Y
20084 F 1§
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B R R EE )

17 Reserves (Continued) 17 FHE@E)
(b) Company (b) AQF
Capital Share-
Share reserve based Retained
premium (Note (i) reserve earnings Total
L ERMA  oEER L
RiniaE (Hzzn) BEZfHE REBEF @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'OCP HK$T00_O
TAL FAET TAT TAET TAT

At 1 April 2006 7200654518 177,314 10,299 - 1,542 189,155

Profit for the year FERRA - - - 233,992 233,992

Dividends paid BIRERE - - - (234,000) (234,000)

At 31 March 2007 7A2007463H31H 177,314 10,299 - 1,534 189,147

At 1 April 2007 M2007%F481AH 177,314 10,299 - 1,534 189,147

Profit for the year FRRA - - - 765,169 765,169

Premium from issuance for PARIRBE L AT

share capital by global B 2R E

offering (Note (v)) (BEtN) 1,916,194 - - - 1,916,194
Global offering expenses PRREERT (120,597) - - - (120,597)
Shares issued by capitalisation IR EBER

from share premium account BRI/ (1,064) - - - (1,064)
Share-based compensation BmEe s

expenses - - 6,533 - 6,533

Dividends paid BIRERE (177,314) (10,299) - (685,527) (873,140)

At 31 March 2008 7200853 531H 1,794,533 - 6,533 81,176 1,882,242

Representing: xRN

Final dividend proposed piﬂiﬁﬂﬂ 107,470 -

Others H 1,687,063 81,176

1,794,533 81,176

Notes: et -

()  Capital reserve represents the difference between the nominal value [0) BARGEE BRIE2004F 11 A2 B4R
of shares of subsidiaries acquired pursuant to a reorganisation in W HE B B A R AR D < T {E B AR B3t
November 2004 over the nominal value of the share capital of the BT RAEE S 25 -

Company issued in exchange thereof.

(i)  Inaccordance with relevant Macao Commercial Code, the subsidiary (i) REFARRPIEEAS - RIRPIEMAK
incorporated in Macau, Pacific Overseas Textiles Macao Commercial S 2 BB R R B KGN AR P e
Offshore Limited, is required to set aside a minimum of 25% of its B RIS AR A B ARG H BRI 5 T
profit after taxation to legal reserve until the balance of this reserve r} 25% NG ARG - Eia%‘%ﬁ
reaches a level equivalent to 50% of its capital. As at 31 March 2005, ﬁ‘?}%?;m?é?m,ﬁﬁxi‘so%ﬁﬂ:
the appropriation to legal reserve of the subsidiary has reached 50% 200573861 A - BEZEZHER T
of its capital. EiERE e BEERRAR50% °

(i) As stipulated by regulations in Mainland China, the Company’s (i) AR EAMERARE - ARFRF
subsidiary established and operated in Mainland China is required to B PR ST B 48 2 P BB R BB 10% Lt
appropriate a portion of their after-tax profit (after offsetting prior year & H%E*E‘Bﬁﬁ%ﬁ&?éﬂ(?ﬁ%&i
losses) to statutory reserve at a rate of 10%. The statutory reserve is EEE {%)iﬂﬁéﬁiiiﬁﬁﬁ o VAR
non-distributable. NAMEDIR

(v)  Other reserves represent the difference between any consideration vy HtFE#EER—B B8R E—M

paid to acquire additional interest in a subsidiary from a minority
shareholder and the relevant carrying value of net assets acquired.

On 17 and 18 May 2007, the Company issued a total of 358,234,000
shares with a par value of HK$0.001 each at a price of HK$5.35 per
share and raised an amount of approximately HK$1,916,552,000.
All these shares rank pari passu with the then existing shares. The
Company’s shares commenced trading on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange on 18 May 2007. The proceeds of the aforementioned
shares, net of listing expenses amounted to approximately
HK$1,795,955,000. The resulting share premium amounted to
approximately HK$1,795,597,000.

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2008

MEAR 2 BIMERE X Z IR
BEEEREMUBIEEREEE

o

R2007E5 8178 X188 + AR FIA
tﬂx535/%m§§ﬁ:./\358234000
BEREECON BTG @ TE
15 491,916,552,000 /& JT ° ﬁﬁﬁaiﬁ
Hﬁfﬁﬁﬁ?ﬁ LR IR BROZEEREE
o K&Tﬂx@ﬁzoo7¢5ﬂ1 =g:d
L )&Fﬁ@ﬁﬁuiﬁﬂ'g & - %«? e
TMER% - FROBZIIENA
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BTSRRI EE )

18 Borrowings 18 B8
Borrowings are analysed as follows: BESTAT
2008 2007
20085 20074
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T FAT
Bank and other borrowings (Note () IRITREMEE (Wit E) 668,709 929,401
Finance lease obligations (Note (b)) EE M EAIE (K2 b)) 2,333 3,904
671,042 933,305
(a) Bank and other borrowings () MITRHEMEE
2008 2007
20085 20074
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FAT
Non-current JERNER
Long-term bank loans — secured RERTTEZ — A 12,051 31,800
Long-term bank loans — unsecured REIRITE R — EIKIH 511,200 606,840
Loan from a minority shareholder —Z LB RIRHER
(Note) (Hizt) 59,229 30,443
582,480 669,083
Less: current portion of long-term B RERITESRENEE o
bank loans (188,793) (253,310)
393,687 415,773
Current BNHA
Current portion of long-term RHESRITE SRENER
bank loans — secured By — B 9,393 19,310
Current portion of long-term REFIRITEFRANES
bank loans — unsecured By — I 179,400 234,000
Short-term bank loans — secured RERIRITE R — B 57,517 65,607
Short-term bank loans — unsecured FEERIRTTE R — IR H = 155,000
Bank overdrafts — secured RITIEZ — BEM 28,712 11,662
Bank overdrafts — unsecured IRITHEY — EIEHR = 28,049
275,022 513,628
Total borrowings BEHEE 668,709 929,401

Note: In 2007, the loan was borrowed from Linea Clothing (Private) Limited
(“Linea”), 48% minority shareholder of Textured Jersey Lanka (Private)

Limited.

Bt - 72007 %

ZEERMAEE

Textured Jersey Lanka (Private)
Limited 48% # i 2 2 AR R Linea
Clothing (Private) Limited([ Linea])

faih o

BERGHERAERDE
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BTSRRI EE )

18 Borrowings (Continued) 18 BE (&
(a) Bank and other borrowings (Continued) (a) MITREMBEE)
On 24 August 2007, Brandix Lanka Limited (“Brandix”) became 722007 8 A 24 H * Brandix Lanka Limited
the 48% minority shareholder of Textured Jersey Lanka (Private) (T Brandix | ) 355 38 6] Linea U4 & £ 7 Textured
Limited as a result of the acquisition of 48% shareholding in Jersey Lanka (Private) Limited 48%R%#E + X
Textured Jersey Lanka (Private) Limited from Linea. Following the A Textured Jersey Lanka (Private) Limited 48%
acquisition, Brandix owned 48% shareholding in Textured Jersey i EAR e o 22T REE S - BrandixES
Lanka (Private) Limited. The loan granted by Linea was assigned to Textured Jersey Lanka (Private) Limited 48%
Brandix. fE#E o Lineat® i 2 B3 % FBrandix °
On 25 January 2008, Pacific Textured Jersey Holdings Ltd., a 720081 A25H © AREI2EKHBAR
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, acquired additional 8% 7] Pacific Textured Jersey Holdings Ltd [A]
interest in Textured Jersey Lanka (Private) Limited from Brandix. Brandix % 4 U B Textured Jersey Lanka
Consequently, the Group’s interest in Textured Jersey Lanka (Private) Limited 8%z  E It + AEER
(Private) Limited was increased from 52% to 60% and Brandix’s Textured Jersey Lanka (Private) Limited 2 ##
interest in Textured Jersey Lanka (Private) Limited is 40%. I A52% I INE60% * MBrandixi Textured
Jersey Lanka (Private) Limited 2 # #@ A&
40% °
The loan is unsecured, interest-free and has no fixed repayment ZEERAEEWN RENEBTERA -
terms.
The carrying amounts of the borrowings are denominated in the BEZEEEDATYEEME
following currencies:
2008 2007
20085 20074
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
HK$ BT 511,200 789,889
US$ ETT 154,053 135,214
Sri Lankan Rupee (“LKR”) WERREL(TEL] 3,456 4,298
668,709 929,401
The effective interest rates (per annum) at the balance sheet date REFZBER(F)FENT -
were as follows:
2008 2007
20085 20074
HK$ uUs$ LKR HK$ uss$ LKR
BT x5 Etk BT ETT EL
Bank overdrafts RITHEX 7% — 8% 3.8% 24.0% 7%-8% 6.4%  23.0%
Bank loans IRITER 4.5% 4.5% 8.5% 5.0% 7.0% 8.5%

The carrying amounts of all bank borrowings approximate their fair
values, as the impact of discounting is not significant.

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2008
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18 Borrowings (Continued)
(@) Bank and other borrowings (Continued)
The maturity of borrowings is as follows:

BTSRRI EE )

18

B8 ()

@ RITRAMEEGE)
fEEZEIMBWT

2008 2007

20085 20074F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FAT

Wholly repayable within 5 years ARG FNEE(EE 668,709 929,401
The borrowings are repayable as follows: BEZEFRROT

2008 2007

20084 20074

HK$’000 HK$’000

FExT FAET

Within 1 year 1R 275,022 513,628

Between 1 and 2 years 1224 260,992 382,242

Between 2 and 5 years 2E54F 132,695 33,531

668,709 929,401

(b) Finance lease obligations
At 31 March 2008, the Group had obligations under finance lease

(b) MEERERIE

20083 A31H » AEEMBMERE

repayable as follows: EMEEZT ¢
2008 2007
20085 20074
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Finance lease liabilities — minimum mMEHREAE -ZE
lease payments: HEFIE
— Not later than 1 year —1FER 1,675 3,231
— Later than 1 year and not —1F181B5F A
later than 5 years 944 883
2,619 4,114
Future finance charges on finance leases A E A& ES H (286) (210)
Present value of finance lease obligations Fi & EFIERE 2,333 3,904
B RGBIZEREBRAF
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18 Borrowings (Continued)
(b) Finance lease obligations (Continued)

Ly ST E )

18 BE(H)

(b) BEREEE(E)

2008 2007
20085 20074
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAET
The present value of finance lease REREREZBENT ¢
liabilities is as follows:
— Not later than 1 year —1FR 1,462 3,090
— Later than 1 year and not —1F18B5F A
later than 5 years 871 814
2,333 3,904
Finance lease obligations were denominated in the following BB EAEIA TS EEDE -
currencies:
2008 2007
2008F 20074
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
HK$ BT - 2,284
RMB AR 2,333 1,620
2,333 3,904

19 Deferred taxation

Deferred taxation is calculated in full on temporary differences under
the liability method using the applicable tax rates which are expected to

apply at the time of reversal of the temporary differences.

19 EIERIIE

EIERIA T 5h R A R A B (R A AR 1 3 B

BERERZHEE2HE -

The movement in the deferred taxation account is as follows: EIEFIEER > BT -
2008 2007
2008%F 20074
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FHT
At 1 April W4A18 3,760 5,300
Recognised in the income statement (Note 27) HRUkzs R &R (H1:227) (293) (1,540)
At 31 March M3A31H 3,467 3,760

100 Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited
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19 Deferred taxation (Continued)

The movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year
without taking into consideration of the offsetting of balances within the

same tax jurisdiction, is as follows:

BTSRRI EE )

19 MEERIE(H)
REE B HRE RIS e A RN FRRE
HEEERBBEZEBEHRIT

Deferred tax liabilities: REFIAEE ¢
Accelerated tax
depreciation and others
IERTER AR E M
HK$’000
FHT
At 1 April 2006 20064818 (220)
Recognised in the income statement Uz R EER (530)
At 31 March 2007 7200743 A318 (750)
Recognised in the income statement RS RFER (1,143)
At 31 March 2008 72008F3531H (1,893)
Deferred tax assets: BEETHIEEE
Provision
BiE
HK$’000
FHET
At 1 April 2006 200654818 5,520
Recognised in the income statement RS RTER (1,010)
At 31 March 2007 7200743 H31H 4,510
Recognised in the income statement R RER 850
At 31 March 2008 7A2008%F3831H 5,360

BERGHERAERDE 101
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19

20

102

Deferred taxation (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same fiscal

authority. The offset amounts are as follows:

Ly ST E )

19

IESERL IR (48)
BAEAGCERBIBIT 2 RN BN IAE E
HEVAR IR A EEE - WREMSHS LR
—RHITEHREE - BIEAGREERAERN M
HiH - AREESTNT

2008 2007
2008F 20074
HK$’°000 HK$’000
T FAET
Deferred tax assets: EEFIAEE ¢
— Deferred tax asset to be recovered —fBiE121E A& Uk E 2
after 12 months FEERRIBEE 5,360 4,510
Deferred tax liabilities: EERIBEE -
— Deferred tax liabilities to be settled —BBE12EARI Nz
after 12 months RIERIBE R (1,893) (750)
Net deferred tax assets FEERIEE EFE 3,467 3,760
Trade and bills payables 20 EERRRERE
2008 2007
20084 20074
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Trade payables FEITERR 432,511 273,869
Bills payables AR 178,510 190,705
611,021 464,574

Trade and bills payables approximate their fair value.

The credit period granted by the creditors generally ranges from 30 to

60 days.

The ageing analysis of the trade and bills payables was as follows:

R BRAR N R 2 BRE (B E A FHEARE -

BT 2 EER RN FI0EE0K °

ENRALZE ZREATNAT -

2008 2007

20085 20074

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FAT

0 - 60 days 0—60X 539,578 374,190
61 — 120 days 61—120K 62,038 87,568
Over 120 days HBiB120K 9,405 2,816
611,021 464,574

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited
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BTSRRI EE )

20 Trade and bills payables (Continued) 20 EFNERREREREE)
Trade and bills payables were denominated in the following currencies: FERER AR ZIEA TS &8 EHE -
2008 2007
20084 20074
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T FAT
HKS BT 187,235 114,067
RMB AR 77,795 57,251
uss$ Ev 345,506 293,035
Others Hih 485 221
611,021 464,574
21 Accruals and other payables 21 FEFtEEHNEMENTIE
(@ Group (@ *&E
2008 2007
20084 20074
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Accruals for other operating expenses HEhaERY 2 fESHIER 85,765 41,820
Provision for staff welfare and other B TER B R EHAM
related costs R A 88,836 83,834
Provision for customer claims EEREERUE 26,545 3,518
Provision for bonus TEAT B S 13,281 9,322
Others HoAth fERTFRIE 7,365 2,312
221,792 140,806

Accruals and other payables were denominated in the following

FERTIA B R EAD BN FIRIA T HIEREEHE ¢

currencies:
2008 2007
20084 20074
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FAET
HKS$ BT 62,472 29,394
RMB AR 141,496 98,537
uss$ = 17,439 12,513
Others Hith 385 362
221,792 140,806

BAGEZERERAT
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Ly ST E )

21 Accruals and other payables (Continued) 21 FEFTIEE REMEIRIEE)
(b) Company (b) AT
2008 2007
20084 20074
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T FHET
Accruals for other operating expenses HihZERY 2 ETRY 3,820 128
Other payables H A pES 50E 7 -
3,827 128

22

23

104

Accruals and other payables were denominated in Hong Kong

dollar.

Derivative financial instruments

Forward foreign exchange contracts
— held for trading
— Assets
— Liabilities

EHIMNER K

—FHEEE
—BE
—AfE

22

FEFHIR B M E Mo e SRIRI A TR
o

TTEERITEAE
2008 2007
20084 20074
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET FAET
18,813 8,618
1,327 234

The notional principal amounts of the outstanding forward exchange

contracts at the balance sheet date are HK574,000,000 (2007:

HK$811,682,000).

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the fair

value of the derivative assets in the balance sheet.

REER - REBZRBINEEGHNZA
% N4 % 5 574,000,000 78 7T ( 2007 F ¢
811,682,000/87T) °

REERH  EEARZ&ZSREREAERR
BEARBRAZITEBEZAFE -

Other revenue and gains - net 23 HMRAR KR —F
2008 2007
20084 20074
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Other revenue: HURA -
- Sub-contracting income —DBUA 19,945 15,743
— Sale of residual materials — HEFARYE 23,426 23,481
— Dividend income from listed investments — R ER B 9 8
- Sundry income —FIEILA 14,401 13,206
57,781 52,438
Other gains — net: Hih s —iF -
— Derivative financial instruments — 1T A
— forward contracts —REAEH 20,857 8,403
— Net foreign exchange gains —INE Wz FE 29,855 3,514
50,712 11,917

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited
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24 Operating profit

BTSRRI EE )

24 #RESHER|

The following items have been charged/(credited) to operating profit: EEEFE R (GEA) TPIER -
2008 2007
2008F 20074
HK$’000 HK$’000
F&xT FET
Depreciation of property, plant and W - WEREEBITE
equipment (Note 8) (H1z#8) 235,641 197,756
Amortisation of leasehold land and FAE 130 Ko+ Hb 55 PR A 5
land use rights (Note 7) (H1z£7) 564 535
Cost of inventories sold FEHEERNKN 3,100,806 2,852,552
Reversal of bad and doubtful debts RIZARH D (5,013) (18,730)
Write-off of bad and doubtful debts REEER IS 4,568 1,672
Employment costs (Note 25) EERA (K :725) 330,678 311,099
Operating lease rental of land and buildings T REFEEHOES 4,524 3,612
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEWE  KEREE W
equipment (Note 30(b)) (B1#£30()) (9,596) (1,324)
Provision for slow-moving and obsolete TR RETERE
inventories 14,272 18,700
Impairment loss on available-for-sale At ESREERBEEE
financial assets 16 -
Auditor’s remuneration ZEANEN 2 2,139 1,447
25 Employment costs (including directors’ emoluments) 25 EERT(BRESHE)
2008 2007
2008F 20074
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Wages, salaries, bonus and allowances TE& - #He - A NER 287,274 251,482
Provision for long-service payment REIBRE 2 BE 893 438
Retirement benefit — defined contribution IRIREF) — E BB RETE
schemes (Note (a)) (H1it(@) 10,896 7,952
Staff welfare and benefits B ITEA MR 25,082 51,227
Share-based compensation expenses A EE > 6,533 -
330,678 311,099
B ARGHEBIZERBRAT
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25 Employment costs (including directors’ emoluments)
(Continued)

106

(@

Retirement benefit costs - defined contribution schemes

The Company’s subsidiary in Mainland China is a member of
the state-managed retirement benefits scheme operated by the
Government of Mainland China. The Group contributes a certain
percentage of the basic salaries of the subsidiary’s employees,
and has no further obligations for the actual payment of pensions
or post-retirement benefits beyond the annual contributions. The
state-managed retirement plans are responsible for the entire
pension obligations payable to the retired employees.

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees to join the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“the MPF Scheme”), a defined
contribution scheme managed by an independent trustee. Under
the MPF Scheme, the Group and its employees make monthly
contributions to the scheme at 5% of the employees’ earnings as
defined under the Mandatory Provident Fund legislation. Both the
Group’s and the employees’ contributions are subject to a cap of
HK$1,000 per month and thereafter contributions are voluntary.

The Group has arranged for its Sri Lanka employees to join
the Employees’ Provident Fund (“EPF”) and Employees’ Trust
Fund (“ETF”). Under these defined contribution plans, the Group
contributes 12% and 3% of the employees’ monthly gross
emoluments to the EPF and ETF, respectively.

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2008
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25 Employment costs (including directors’ emoluments) 25 {ES/RA(EIEESE) (@)
(Continued)
(b) Directors’ emoluments (b) ESMs
The remuneration of every director of the Company for the year HZE2008F3A3IHIEFE » AAFS
ended 31 March 2008 is set out below: SEE7MemT :
Employer’s
Contribution
to
Discretionary retirement
Fees Salaries bonuses schemes Total
BIRGHEIZ
we E EBfETEAL BEHK @st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FET THT FHET
Ip Ping Im 30374 - - - - -
Choi Kin Chung @ - - - - -
Wan Wai Lol FHEK 1,500 2,790 2,222 12 6,524
Tsang Kang Po B 1,000 2,900 2,116 12 6,028
Lam Wing Tak MEE 1,000 2,900 1,816 12 5,728
Lam King Man MEX 1,000 1,730 1,295 12 4,037
Ho Hsiang Ming, James BRX - - - - -
Lau Yiu Tong e - - - _ _
Chan Yue Kwong, Michael BRAA 138 - - - 138
Ng Ching Wah hmEE 138 - - - 138
Sze Kwok Wing, Nigel eI 138 - - - 138
4,914 10,320 7,449 48 22,731

BERGHERAERDE 107
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25 Employment costs (including directors’ emoluments) 25
(Continued)

(b)

(@]

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

(b)

B RS ERR M EE ()
EEXRAN(BEESHNE) (®)

£ EAG))

The remuneration of every director of the Company for the year HZE2007F3A3IBHIEFE » AAFE
ended 31 March 2007 is set out below: BE7Me0T

Employer’s

Contribution

to

Discretionary retirement
Fees Salaries bonuses schemes Total

BRETEZ
e e Bt TEAL EEMHX oy
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET FET FET THET
Ip Ping Im K - - - _ _
Choi Kin Chung Eageae] - - - - -
Wan Wai Loi FHER 1,500 2,790 3,415 12 7,717
Tsang Kang Po TR 1,000 2,900 2,799 12 6,711
Lam Wing Tak PRERTE 1,000 2,900 3,175 12 7,087
Lam King Man M=X 1,000 1,650 1,781 12 4,443
Ho Hsiang Ming, James BEX - - - - -
Lau Yiu Tong 2 - - _ _ _
Chan Yue Kwong, Michael BRI - - - - -
Ng Ching Wah higzE - - - - -
Sze Kwok Wing, Nigel HEB 8 - - - - -
4,500 10,240 11,170 48 25,958

Five highest paid individuals (c) EBBRSHAL

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the NREFB 7RG RS HATHRBIEAIZ

Group include 4 directors (2007: 4 directors), whose emoluments
are reflected in the analysis presented above. The emoluments
payable to the remaining 1 individual (2007: 1 individual) are as

FEH(2007F  4%ESE)  FEZMe
ERESITRMEE - BB T1RAL
(2007%F 1B AT ZBE T -

follows:
2008 2007
20085 20074
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Basic salaries, housing allowances EXFHE  BERER
and other allowances HAth)=ERh 1,426 2,073
Discretionary bonuses BETEAT 1,230 1,383
Retirement benefit — defined contribution  RABH| — E XA FKETEI
schemes 12 12
Share-based compensation & e 134 -
2,802 3,468
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25

26

27

Employment costs (including directors’ emoluments)
(Continued)
(c) Five highest paid individuals (Continued)
The number of non-directors with emoluments fell within the
following bands:

p S EL IR
25 EERKN(EEESEIHE) &)

) BEEBSHFAL(E)
FEEALZMEEATHENAR

2008 2007
2008F 20074
HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7 — 3,000,000/ 7T 1 -
HK$3,000,001 — HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 7 — 3,500,000/ 7T -
Finance income and costs 26 BIEUWRAR KA
2008 2007
20084 20074
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Finance income: E A NE
- bank interest income —RITREMA 44,351 4,548
Finance costs: IR I %N
— bank loans and overdrafts —RITEFRES 33,098 42,064
- finance lease obligations — R E &R 185 105
33,283 42,169

Income tax expense
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 17.5% (2007:
17.5%) on the estimated assessable profits for the year.

On 16 March 2007, the National People's Congress approved the
Corporate Income Tax Law of the People's Republic of China (the
"new CIT Law") and the State Council has announced the Detailed
Implementation Regulations on 6 December 2007 which has become
effective from 1 January 2008. The new CIT Law standardises the
corporate income tax rate to 25% for both domestic and foreign
investment enterprises effective from 1 January 2008. As such, the
subsidiary established in Mainland China as a wholly-owned foreign
enterprise is subject to enterprise income tax rate of 25% from 1
January 2008 (2007: 12%).

The subsidiary established and operated in Sri Lanka, Textured Jersey
Lanka (Private) Limited, is exempted from income tax on its profits for a
period of 12 years from the first year of commencement of commercial
operations in September 2001.

27 FREHiBEX
EEFER B BTN R R FiE
17.5%(20074F : 17.5% ) {E L34 -

R2007E3F16H - 2RARKREKERB
(REAREMBMEERE)FER
BEUE]) - MEBEER2007E12 A6 BB
BEEEMmAME) - WEMN2008F1 A1BARK °
B2008F1 A1 » MIEEMBREBRE
MONERBECEZ CEMEHE—H25% -
Hit - RRBRRA S 2B AR (2E 5
BHE)EBE2008F1 A1 BREBRMEMS
THER25% 8 F (20074 : 12%) °

RET BB RS A4S & 2 [ B A & Textured
Jersey Lanka (Private) Limited B 2001 %9 A
WA EEFEEAFERI2FHE - B#He
BEDE BN -
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27

110

Income tax expense (Continued)
The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated income statement

Ly ST E )

27 FRIERRSZ(8)

represents:

RiFAWERTR AR

2008 2007

2008F 20074

HK$’000 HK$’'000

F&T FET

Current income tax BIHEARTIS B

— Hong Kong profits tax —BBNEH 32,182 57,492

— Mainland China income tax — R HFT ST 36,112 24,401

— Others —H A 12 15
Over-provision FRERRE - (232)

Deferred taxation (Note 19) EETRE (A 5719) 293 1,540

68,599 83,216

The taxation on the Group’s profit before income tax differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted average tax rate

?MKE 1% B P15 0 A A 1) 2 B8 TR BB A R
RAENEN Z INEFEREAE 2R E

applicable to profits of the group companies as follows: %EZ%EZZDT :
2008 2007
2008F 20074
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAET
Profit before income tax PS8 A% F 465,413 646,862
Tax calculated at weighted average domestic 1% AR EREME BxR 2
tax rate applicable to profits in the IR S B R &
respective places/countries 2| 63,659 78,998
Income not subject to tax HBERF N (1,346) (1,444)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes DR = 6,262 5,960
Over provision in prior years BT FEBEEREE - (232)
Others HAt 24 (66)
68,599 83,216

The weighted average applicable tax rate was:

Weighted average domestic applicable
tax rate

IREFIG 77 5B AT &

IR EMM RN

2008 2007
20084 20074
13.7% 12.2%

The change in weighted average applicable tax rate above is mainly
caused by a change in the corporate income tax rate for the PRC

subsidiary from 1 January 2008.

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited
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28 Earnings per share

(@

(b)

Basic
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit
attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted

BTSRRI EE )

BRER

28

(@

27X
BREABNZARABIESRAARE
a8 MR F A B TR hNAE 18 BT

st

average number of shares in issue during the year. o
2008 2007
20085 20074
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Profit attributable to equity holders of AR E ARG R
the Company 392,093 555,698
Weighted average number of shares 23T A B (FAR)
in issue (thousands) 1,388,157 1,074,702
Basic earnings per share (HK$ per share) SRRERZ TN (FIRET) 0.28 0.52
Diluted (b) #E

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted
average number of shares outstanding to assume conversion of all
dilutive potential shares. The Company has one category of dilutive
potential shares: share options.

As the exercise price of the share options granted by the Company
was higher than the average market price of the Company’s
shares for the year ended 31 March 2008, those outstanding
share options granted which amounted to 22,230,000 shares as
at 31 March 2008 (2007: Nil) have no dilutive effect on earnings
per share in 2008 and diluted earnings per share is therefore the
same as basic earnings per share.

SRR THERBAREITID 20
BFOHERR L RAE#EEERN
FTE - NRRA—EEEEERD - B
Pt -

HARARRIBREZEREZTEES
REZE 20083 A31 B ILFEEARRQ A
Bz FHmE - R2008F3 H31H
EFRHERRITECEBREZHE A
22,230,000 A% J& 15 (2007 & : &) -
2008 FERAF W EEELE
It BREERFEEGRERNZFA

== °

29 Dividends 29 B2
2008 2007
20084 20074
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FHT
Dividend paid (Note (i) BRI B (HTAE0)) = 234,000
Special dividend paid (Note (ii)) ERATEF RIS (A3 i) 779,999 -
Interim dividend paid of HK 6.5 cents BIRTEE 6.5002 FEIAR B
(2007: Nil) (Note (i) (20074 « &) (K at (i) 93,141 -
Proposed final dividend of HK 7.5 cents FORMBEE 7.500 2 REARR S
(2007: Nil) (Note (iv)) (20074 « %) (Ktat(iv)) 107,470 -
980,610 234,000
BAGHEIERERDT
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29 Dividends (Continued)

112

Note:

0

(i

(i)

()

On 6 June 2006, the Board of Directors of the Company declared a
dividend of HK$234 million for the year ended 31 March 2007. The amount
was paid on 12 June 2006.

On 26 April 2007, the Board of Directors of the Company declared a
special dividend of approximately HK$780 million payable to the then equity
holders of the Company. The amount was paid on 17 May 2007.

On 14 December 2007, the Board of Directors of the Company declared an
interim dividend of HK 6.5 cents per share, totaling HK$93,141,000 for the
year ended 31 March 2008. The amount was paid on 31 January 2008.

On 11 July 2008, the Board of Directors of the Company declared a final
dividend of HK 7.5 cents per share for the year ended 31 March 2008. This
proposed dividend is not reflected as dividend payable in these financial
statements, but will be reflected as an appropriation of share premium for
the year ending 31 March 2009.

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2008
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29 BB (4

(i)

(iv)

=\

=9

MR2006F6A6H - RARIBEERERES
20073 A1 AILFEREMEEBTT
ZEFAD2006F6 4128 17 ©

20074268  AARIEEZREIRIER!
RE780EER LT EERANAIERIEHE
A o ZEFIEDR2007FE5 A17TH S ©

M2007F 128148 » AAREEZRTKE
ZF2008F3A31HILFEF HRE GBI
6.5 »+ & 3£93,141,0008 7T ° ZSHIAL
20081318 =1 -

R2008FE7A11H » ARAEEREIRE
F2008F3A31 B IEFERARBGRABE
750 o BRI E W ER ST HEHRE L
R AEMRE - B REZE200943 A31
ALIEFEZBDEEZ DR R -



Financial Information
B E R

BTSRRI EE )

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

30 Consolidated cash flow statement 30 HKERERER
(a) Cash generated from operations (a) REEKFEEERS
2008 2007
20085 20074
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Profit before income tax 155 Az A 465,413 646,862
Adjustment for: AT &IR 2 8% -
Share of (profit)/loss of associates FEIEERS N TICER)), B (886) 1,997
Depreciation of property, plant and Y  WELREITE
equipment 235,641 197,756
Amortisation of leasehold land and FEE 4 Ko 4 30 5 FR A B 5
land use rights 564 535
Gain on disposal of property, plant HEYE - BELREZ S
and equipment (9,596) (1,324)
Loss on disposal of available-for-sale AtHETREE Y EE
financial assets = 2
Interest income B (44,351) (4,548)
Interest expense FIERS 33,283 42,169
Share-based compensation 1D B & 6,533 -
Dividend income % B U = 9) (8)
Impairment loss on available-for-sale At E SR E ERERE
financial assets 16 -
Net fair value gains on derivative PTAESRMIANTE
financial instruments G (9,102) (8,403)
Unrealised gains on exchange P H Z=RE R # R
difference (19,017) (2,021)
Operating profit before working LBEDEBA LB ER
capital changes 658,489 873,017
Increase in inventories FEEM (39,950) (263,435)
Increase in trade and bills receivables FEUBRE A R 2418 N (29,087) (19,406)
Decrease/(increase) in deposits, e FENREREMmE
prepayments and other receivables WERER A, (32 n) 1 (18,578)
Increase in trade and bills payables FETBER R EZEIE NN 146,447 45,295
Increase in accruals and other payables — fE=TIE B K& E {th B 2R IEIE AN 51,306 48,730
Cash generated from operations CEEBREEZRE 787,206 665,623
B RGBIZEREBRAF
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30 Consolidated cash flow statement (Continued)

31

Ly ST E )

30 FEEBERERE)

(b) In the cash flow statement, proceeds from disposal of property, (b) REEREBRA - LEVE  BERE
plant and equipment comprise: HRSRIEBE
2008 2007
2008 20074F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT
Net book amount (Note 8) REFEAEES) 4,527 1,753
Gain on disposal of property, plant HEME  BEEREZEE
and equipment 9,596 1,324
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME « MENBERSRIE
plant and equipment 14,123 3,077
() Acquisition of additional interest in a subsidiary from a (c) M—B|LERRIZE—REHNBATZE
minority shareholder (Note 9) @ (f1529)
2008 2007
20084 20074
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Net assets attributable to minority interest > A% 50 fE(E BB 2 B E R E
acquired 9,225 -
Excess of consideration over the carrying H{BEATULEEH) L BRLER
value of the minority interest acquired EREEES L 3,559 -
Purchase consideration settled by cash &SN EERE 12,784 -
(d) Significant non-cash transactions (d EXFBEERS
()  During the year, the Group entered into finance lease () FRN- XEEHRVE - BERR
arrangements in respect of property, plant and equipment BRI MEMEZYE - R M
with a total capital value at the inception of the leases of AR 2 BARMBIEX) /1,832,000
approximately HK$1,832,000 (2007: HK$4,197,000). JC(20074F : 4,197,000 7C) °
(i) At 31 March 2008, the amount of approximately (i) H 2008 3A31H » MW -
HK$29,680,000 (2007: Nil) in respect of purchase of BELIXEBEEEBOR
property, plant and equipment has been provided for. 29,680,000/ 7T (20074 : #&) °
Contingent liabilities 31 HEEE
As at 31 March 2008, the Group had no material contingent liabilities 200856 3A31H  AEEWEERSEE
(2007: HK$NIl). f&(20074F : &) °
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32 Commitments

(@

(b)

Capital commitments
Capital expenditure at the balance sheet date but not yet incurred is
as follows:

Property, plant and equipment EETH R B 2=
Contracted but not provided for B K &

BTSRRI EE )

32 RiE
(@) EAREIE
REERARMREEZERAAI N
T

2008 2007
20084 20074
HK$’000 HK$’000
F&T FAET
155,211 72,320

As at 31 March 2008, the Group had authorised the injection of
capital into an associate to be established in Mainland China with
an independent third party totalling approximately HK$24,304,000
to provide steam generated by the Group to potential users.

Operating lease commitments
The Group had future aggregate minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases of land and buildings, as follows:

(b)

720083 A318 » AEBEHER—
REBE = FEEMERNREIRKZZ
B A R EE A £ 4924,304,0007 7T
LR AREBATES 2 E R TFHDEBE
ERE -

REBEARE
REBIRE L MR T2 AR B &
HEARRRKIEE S FIREBNAT -

2008 2007

20085 20074

HK$’000 HK$’000

F#ET FHET

Not later than 1 year —F R 2,276 2,299
Later than 1 year and not later than —FRERAFR

5 years 644 1,004

2,920 3,303

33 Related party transactions
Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability, directly
or indirectly, to control the other party or exercise significant influence
over the other party in making financial and operating decisions. Parties
are also considered to be related if they are subject to common control
or common significant influence.

The Company has no immediate or ultimate controlling party.

33 BREALRS
WER - BN ERRMEES S~ -
AR REEBRRITEERNZE S - Rt
FANLHRELERE o WEREA LR KRES
KAREATZE - AR R ERE -

RABWEEE RREERAL
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33 Related party transactions (Continued)

33

The following transactions were carried out with related parties:

(a) Sale of goods

Ly ST E )

BREALRF (#)
HEBBALETZZS0T
@ HEEM

Continuing FFE
2008 2007
20084 20074F
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FHIT
A minority shareholder and its related —RVERRREBEEAT
parties (Note (i) (H1a#0) 222,618 332,341
A related party (Note (i) — BB EEANL(AZ36) 14,574 12,568
237,192 344,909
Goods are sold at prices mutually agreed by both parties. ERIIREFIEZBIREE -
(b) Management charges (b) EEEHR
2008 2007
20084 20074
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT
A minority shareholder and its related —HVERRREBBEAL
parties (Note (i) (Hia0) 224 457

(c) Year-end balances (included in trade receivables and trade
payables) arising from sale/purchase of goods:

© HEEE RBEmELZFHEBER

(I AR BRI B A BRFR)

2008 2007
20084 20074
HK$°000 HK$’'000
FHET FAT

Receivables from related parties FEME @ A T5RR

A minority shareholder and its related —ZLERRREGEEALT

parties (Note (i) (HiaE0) 20,316 38,597
A related party (Note (i) — 2B EEANLT(HE0) 2,030 1,337
22,346 39,934

Payables to related parties e BREEALTFUA
A minority shareholder (Note (i) —Z BRI () 176 2,021
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33 Related party transactions (Continued)
Year-end balances (included in trade receivables and trade
payables) arising from sales/purchases of goods: (Continued)

34

(c)

(d)

(e)

Note:

)

(i

In 2007, Linea was a minority interest shareholder, with 48% equity
interest, of Textured Jersey Lanka (Private) Limited. Its related parties
include its holding company and fellow subsidiaries.

On 24 August 2007, Brandix became the 48% minority shareholder of
Textured Jersey Lanka (Private) Limited as a result of the acquisition
of 48% shareholding in Textured Jersey Lanka (Private) Limited from
Linea. Following the acquisition, Brandix owned 48% shareholding in
Textured Jersey Lanka (Private) Limited.

On 25 January 2008, Pacific Textured Jersey Holdings Ltd., a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, acquired additional 8% interest in
Textured Jersey Lanka (Private) Limited from Brandix. Consequently,
the Group’s interest in Textured Jersey Lanka (Private) Limited was
increased from 52% to 60% and Brandix’s interest in Textured Jersey
Lanka (Private) Limited is 40%. The related parties of Brandix include
its holding company and fellow subsidiaries.

Companies controlled by Mr. Henry Choi Wing Kong, son of Mr.
Choi Kin Chung, a director of the Company, is a related party of the
Company.

Key management compensation

BTSRRI EE )

33 BBREALXRG®)
() EHE RESSELCEFEEH
(FIAFEWER S B FEBRER) © (4B)
W -

[0} 7 2007 % - Linea A& Textured Jersey
Lanka (Private) Limited 2 > #{ A% 5+
EHAS% B AR - HAEBEALTBIE
HpB AR RRRMEAR -

200748 A24 8 + Brandixi® i@ MLinea
U B8 H 7 Textured Jersey Lanka (Private)
Limited 48% A&#E  BX A Textured Jersey
Lanka (Private) Limited 48% % 1 2> 2
B&R o #ZTE 1% - Brandix A
Textured Jersey Lanka (Private) Limited
AB%RIIE ©

200841 B25H « "RAR AN E
‘A |] Pacific Textured Jersey Holdings
Ltd. [A] Brandix 58 7N i Textured Jersey
Lanka (Private) Limited 8%#&£z5 ° ELL, -

LB M Textured Jersey Lanka (Private)
Limited 2 # %% 1 52% 38 INZ=60% * 1M
BrandixiA Textured Jersey Lanka (Private)
Limited 2 #& 2= 43 40% ° Brandix A [ &
ATBREHIERATIRERMERF

(i) HBAAREESEEPIEEEFEEN
FEEH 2 AR BARRARIEEAL -

d) FEEEASHE

2008 2007

20085 20074

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FAT

Wages, salaries, bonus and allowances ~ T& - ¥4 - 7841 284 23,957 38,979
Retirement benefits — defined contribution 3RIKEH| — FEREHFETE

schemes 63 84

Share-based compensation expenses B EE = H 134 -

24,154 39,063

The amounts due from and due to subsidiaries are unsecured,
interest free and repayable on demand.

Profit attributable to equity holders
The profit attributable to equity holders of the Company is dealt with in
the financial statements of the Company to the extent of approximately
HK$765,169,000 (2007: HK$233,992,000).

() EBURENHWBIRNKESEER 2
BRAREREE -

34 EZFEAEGEER
AR A RIS N RE PR
#7765,169,0007%5 7T (2007 £ : 233,992,000
BIT) e

BERGHERAERDE
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BHE

Consolidated Results

Year ended 31 March
HESANMHILLEE
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
2008F 20074 20064 20054 20044
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
FTHET FAT FAET FAT FAT
Revenue WA 4,280,646 4203357 3,363,029 2,022,840 2,265,821
Gross Profit EA 696,887 922,091 802,256 639,461 637,313
Equity holders of the Company AR H AEIGHEZ 392,093 555,698 458,855 351,679 307,299
Minority interests DR EER 4,721 7,948 10,495 (1,255) -
396,814 563,646 469,350 350,424 307,299
Consolidated Balance Sheet
meEEERER
As at 31 March
M3A31H
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
2008F 20074 2006%F 20054 20044F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAET FAT FAET
Non-current assets IRBEE 1,571,284 1,237,790 956,292 854,419 624,429
Current assets MENEE 2,831,677 1,803,121 1,398,436 1,230,243 1,194,793
Total assets BEWRE 4,402,961 3,040,911  2,354728 2,084,662 1,819,222
Current liabilities mEEE 1,122,394 1,132,831 797,514 479,400 674,315
Total assets less current liabilites & EAERTE A E 3,280,567 1,908,080 1,657,214 1,605,262 1,144,907
Non-current liabilities ErRBARE 394,558 416,587 469,918 81,624 26,776
Total equity s g 2,886,009 1,491,493 1,087,296 1,523,638 1,118,131
Net current assets TEVEEFE 1,709,283 670,290 600,922 750,843 520,478
Equity shareholders RRFERBAA
of the Company fEfh R 2,839,765 1,440,745 1,044,496 1,519,414 1,118,131
Minority interests DER R ER 46,244 50,748 42,800 4,224 -
2,886,009 1,491,493 1,087,296 1,523,638 1,118,131
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In this annual report (other than the Independent Auditor’s Report and
Financial Information), unless the context otherwise requires, the following
expression shall have the following meanings:

2008 Financial Year
For the year ended 31 March 2008

AGM

Annual general meeting of the Company

Articles

the Articles of Association of the Company, as amended from time to time

Board

the board of Directors of the Company

Brandix
Brandix Lanka Limited, a company with limited liability and incorporated in Sri
Lanka

CG Code

The Code on Corporate Governance Practices

Company

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited, an exempted company incorporated in
Cayman Islands with limited liability, the shares of which are listed on the
Stock Exchange

Directors
the director(s) of the Company

Group

the Company and its subsidiaries

INED

The independent non-executive Directors

Linea
Linea Clothing (Private) Limited, a company incorporated in Sri Lanka

Listing
Listing of the Shares on the Stock Exchange on 18 May 2007

Listing Rules

The Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange

MAS

MAS Capital Private Limited, a company incorporated in Sri Lanka

RAFHRA BRI & BB ERGRIN)
FRIENERBAE  THFAEEEUTEER

2008F T FE
BZ200843A31 AILEE

BREEFRE
ARFZBRBFAR

ERES ]
ARRREET 2 A TR S SRR

S
ARAZEES

Brandix
Brandix Lanka Limited © —fE7EHT B8R sEMA L
ZBRAF

}

7
EREREMRTA

EN/NS
ERHBERARAR  —HRFHESFSEMAK
T2 RHBRERAT - HRDPBER P LT

55
ARAZEE

REE
EONNE] PN

BN IEHITES
KABRBILIENITES
Linea

Linea Clothing (Private) Limited *+ —fIRETE# <
EERiliIDAvArA/NS!

il
RN FR2007F5 A18B B AT £
EmRA

B s LA

MAS
MAS Capital Private Limited © —ERAHT 2B K5E
I AVIVA/NC]
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Model Code

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers

Prospectus
The prospectus of the Company dated 7 May 2007

PT Sri Lanka

Textured Jersey Lanka (Private) Limited, a limited liability company
incorporated under the laws of Sri Lanka

SFO

The Securities and Futures Ordinance

Shares
Shares with a nominal value of HK$0.001 each in the capital of the Company

Share Option Scheme
The share option scheme adopted by the Company pursuant to the written
resolutions of the Shareholders of the Company passed on 27 April 2007

Stock Exchange
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited
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